
 
Mission: Deliver an outstanding patient care experience driven by a passionate commitment to excellence 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Thursday, December 10, 2020 
VIA ZOOM: 1700 hours 

Windsor, Ontario 

 (ZOOM link is included with the meeting request) 

 TAB TIME ACTION 

1. CALL TO ORDER (Paniccia) 

 

 1700  

2. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST  

(Paniccia) 

 1701  

3. PREVIOUS MINUTES:  

 

November 05, 2020 (Paniccia) 

 

 

 

Tab A 

 

1702 MOTION 

(approve) 

4. REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT & CEO (Musyj) 

- 

Tab B 1704 FYI 

5. SCHULICH REPORT (Jacobs) 

 

Tab C 1725 FYI 

6. FINANCIAL PRESENTATION & TREASURER’S 

REPORT (Allen) 

Tab D 

 

1730 MOTION 

(accept) 

 

7. CONSENT AGENDA: 

Finance/Audit & Resources – Nov. 30, 2020 (Allen) 

 

 

Tab E 

 

1740 

MOTION 

(accept) 

8. CORRESPONDENCE/PRINTED MATTER:  

 Media Report – FYI only (Paniccia) 

 

 November 26, 2020 OHA letter to Premier Ford 
re: OHA recommendation to initiate independent 

formal review of Ontario’s public health framework 

 

 Windsor City Council resolution 

 

 

Tab F 

 

Tab G 

 

 

 

Tab H 

 

 

1742 

 

1744 

 

 

FYI 

 

FYI 

 

9. BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS OR 

NOTICES OF MOTIONS (Paniccia) 

 

 1747  

10. DATE OF NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING: 

Thursday, January 07, 2021 – ZOOM 

 

  

1748 

 

FYI 

11. ADJOURNMENT (Paniccia) 

 

 1748 MOTION 

 

REGRETS ONLY TO CHERYLE CLARK, Cheryle.clark@wrh.on.ca, or  

mailto:Cheryle.clark@wrh.on.ca


(519) 254-5577 X56000 



 

 
T

A
B

 A
 



 

Board of Directors – November 05, 2020 Page 1 
 

 
 

MINUTES of the BOARD OF DIRECTORS meeting held on Thursday, November 05, 2020, 

17:00 hours, via ZOOM, live streamed on YouTube. 
 

PRESENT:  
Anthony Paniccia, Chair Dr. Laurie Freeman  

Genevieve Isshak  Patricia France  Dr. Wassim Saad (ex-officio, non-voting) 

Paul Lachance   Cynthia Bissonnette David Musyj (ex-officio, non-voting) 

Michael Lavoie   Dan Wilson  Karen McCullough (ex-officio, non-voting) 

Penny Allen   John Leontowicz  

Pam Skillings   Arvind Arya 

 

STAFF: 
Executive Committee 

 

REGRETS: 

Dr. Larry Jacobs (ex-officio, non-voting)  Dr. Anil Dhar (ex-officio, non-voting) 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 

 

The meeting was called to order at 1732 hours with Mr. Paniccia presiding as Chair, and Ms. 

Clark recording the minutes.   

 

2. PRESENTATION – Supporting Our Vulnerable Populations 

Presenters: Karen McCullough, Erika Vitale, Director, Infection Control and Pandemic 

Planning. and Marie Colarossi, Manager, Utilization 

 

This presentation highlights what we have done as a region regarding our ltc and retirement 

homes sector and some of the issues they are facing..  They are a vulnerable sector and they 

have been impacted negatively by COVID nationally and internationally.  Our hospitals, along 

with other agencies got together earlier when COVID first hit, to support that sector.  It has 

now been mandated by the province to do this work and to have a much closer relationship 

with them.  

 

There were Interim recommendations about working more closely with LTC and retirement 

homes. 

 

Ms. Vitale and Ms. Colarossi spoke about the work they have been doing. 

 

An ESC partnership was formed that included: 

LTC retirement home leadership 

Home & Community care 

Ontario Health 

Emergency medical services 



 

Board of Directors – November 05, 2020 Page 2 
 

Local Hospitals 

Public Health Unit 

 

Many hospitals stepped forward voluntarily to support LTC and retirement homes. 

 

Many of the homes were already in outbreak by the time we got to them. 

 

A SWAT Team was formed and consisted of: 

Administrative Leads 

IPAC Professionals 

Occupational Health & Safety Representatives 

Housekeeping/Dietary Expertise 

Also thanks to our EMS who were not part of the initial team but assisted us greatly. 

 

The SWAT teams prioritized their visits and visited the homes in outbreak first.  They needed 

to do a thorough review of the IPAC practices in and housekeeping within the homes.  They 

reviewed resident rooms and common areas, and identified areas for improvements.  There 

was always a debrief at the end of each visit. 

Examples: testing of residents and staff, acquiring PPE supplies, reviewing housekeeping 

practices, review IPAC measure in place.   

 

They identified areas where SWAT could assist and supplied a report to homes, which allowed 

them to have something in writing to work on an action plans.  The SWAT team provided 

knowledge and understanding of common issues faced by the homes.  The SWAT team was 

able to develop a rapid response plan for homes that could be implemented upon outbreak.  

SWAT also made suggestions based on how COVID-19 is spread and provided reports to the 

homes to enable them to develop solid action plans. 

 

Outcome and results: i) There was a decrease in spread of COVID-19, ii) There was a decrease 

in mortality, iii) Residents were cared for at LTC/Retirement homes. 

 

Sustainability Plan: 

Windsor/Essex County hospital partnerships developed a standardized sustainability plan. 

Chatham and Sarnia also have a plan to prevent the spread of COVID. 

This was developed in partnership with LTC/RH leadership, Public Health, Home and 

Community Care. 

Efforts are underway to standardize a plan throughout the region. 

Daily metrics flag areas of concern to prevent widespread transmission of COVID. 

Developed to strengthen the processes and partnerships created.  Focus is on prevention, early 

detection and immediate intervention.  There are monthly site visits, weekly touch base, 

tracking and trending and daily reviews. 

 

Audit tools such as a Sustainability Checklists are used.  There are also Tracking Tools used. 

A graph in the slides showed a downward trend for ED visits and admissions, which is what 

we want to see. 

 



 

Board of Directors – November 05, 2020 Page 3 
 

Country Village was one of the first homes who found themselves in a COVID outbreak.  This 

was before the partnerships were developed.  They stated that the additional relationship with 

the hospitals gave support to them.  

Regency Park and Heron Terrace both praised the work we have done. 

 

Ms. McCullough stated the work of this team has been unbelievable.  Recommendations from 

Ontario Health that came out in October were implemented back in in March and April – there 

has been a total team approach, all done on the ground at the time the pandemic was on our 

doorsteps.  It was a total sector reaction and relationship.  We did everything we could do. 

Marie Colorassi said it has been a wonderful partnership.  Leadership at rest homes and ltc 

were receptive and engaged in this partnership.   

 

Board member comment: It is wonderful how we embraced the situation we were under to get 

it done.  This is what helped save our community. 

 

Mr. Paniccia stated we have the best team around from top to bottom. He was proud of every 

employee of WRH for the job they have done during this pandemic and the outreach.  Other 

regions look at us and are in awe of what the team has accomplished.  On behalf of the Board, 

thank you.  

 

Mr. Musyj stated he did visit with the teams and filled out the labels on the tubes but he did 

not have any direct resident contact.  He agreed with Mr. Paniccia, that Marie and her team 

have done an amazing job.  We learned a lot from the ltc sector.  They go through the same 

struggles we go through.   Moving forward, this is a relationship that should not stop once 

COVID is resolved and is beneficial for all parties involved; between Hospitals and LTC 

homes.  The team did a great job. 

 

3. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST: 

None noted. 

 

4. PREVIOUS MINUTES –October 01, 2020 

The minutes of the October 01, 2020 Board of Directors meeting had been previously 

distributed. 

 

MOVED by Mr. D. Wilson, SECONDED by Mr. P. Lachance and CARRIED 

THAT the minutes from the October 01, 2020 Board of Directors meeting be approved. 

 

5. REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT & CEO: 

 

Mr. Musyj referred to his written report.  Highlights are noted below: 

 

Our new strategic plan was announced at our last Board meeting,.  We are putting the final 

touches on the communication document.  It is for 2021 to 2024.  As normal, I tried to break 

down my report on the basis of the new strategic directions and initiatives.  He wrote in his 

report about the issue we are seeing across the province.  We are seeing a number of positive 

cases that are occurring within the ltc sector.  Because of the work of the greater team, 

although we have had some outbreaks, all the work the ltc homes and hospital teams and 

Ontario Health have done, has been proactive so when an outbreak does occur, the homes are 



 

Board of Directors – November 05, 2020 Page 4 
 

reactive.  We try to cohort residents and staff impacted.  We have found the concept of going 

in and swabbing all residents and staff, recalibrating, seeing who is positive, segregating them, 

re-swab again until we get all negatives, and then generally the situation is OK.  We have seen 

great results.  We have had minimal hospitalizations.  Have recent homes in outbreak and 

hopefully it will go well.  We stand a chance when we follow that approach.  There are 

multiple research studies from across the world that indicate that is the approach to follow. 

 

Flu update: 

We are supposed to be receiving a bigger shipment of flu vaccines in the middle of November.  

There has been a new Canadian report re: influenza.  They have had an increase in the number 

of people tested and tested in what they call “week 43”, about 8,000 tests for influenza were 

performed across Canada, which is two times the average for this week over the past six years.  

The percentage of positives was .02% vs .08% during the past two seasons.  That is dramatic.  

Hopefully everyone is getting a vaccine and the public health measures we have taken as a 

province and nation have helped so far in keeping influenza at bay.  The last thing we want to 

be doing is fighting COVID and influenza at the same time.  So far it is working.  We have to 

continue to do that. 

 

Provincial budget:  We weren’t expecting anything about the capital plan in this budget.  It 

will be in the March 2021 budget as we have been told.  The Mayor met with the Minister of 

Labour last week.  We continue to work with the bureaucratic side – the capital side on the 

project.  The budget was announced.  There is a substantial amount of funding for COVID 

expenses.  The government has agreed we can announce that we received our March and April 

funding for COVID expenses.  May, June and July we should get COVID expenses 

reimbursed within the next couple of weeks as well as any capital expenses we had re: COVID.  

There is an operational and capital part to COVID.  They are fulfilling exactly what they 

promised.  This helps with the cashflow for the organization. 

 

WE SPARK and HDGH (Local research group, spearheaded by University and also includes 

HDGH, WRH and St. Clair College):  There is a survey for healthcare workers to complete to 

participate in a research study.  It talks about the emotional wellbeing of healthcare workers 

and to get through this stressful time. 

 

6. REPORT FROM SCHULICH: 

Dr. Jacobs could not attend the meeting tonight.  There will be a report next month. 

 

7. Financial Presentation – as of September 30, 2020. 

Ms. Allen reported.   

 Actual deficit is $2, 593,000. 

 Revenue has been lost from parking and cafeteria. 

 $13,302,465 unfunded y-t-d September 2020 

 

 Y-t-d results include $13.3 million for COVID operation expenses.  Revenue losses 

total $9.8 million. 

 Current COVID fiscal reimbursement is $2.7million, which is good and is for March 

and April, 2020. 

 There are other COVID expenses that we are confident the Ministry will support. 



 

Board of Directors – November 05, 2020 Page 5 
 

 Current net deficit is $3,689,000. 

 Current deficit from hospital operations is $2,593. 

 If we get reimbursements, we would have a revised net surplus from hospital 

operations of $3.3 million. 

 

YTD revenue: 

 Base and one time funding: $7,767K favourable. 

 $3.3 million for QBP’s is in limbo because of the cancellation of elective surgeries. 

 

Salary & wages: 

 re-imbursed on Pandemic Pay.  

 Sick & isolation payroll is starting to drop from April to September.  There are fewer 

sick people. 

 

Drugs – unfavourable $1.23 million 

Other supplies and expenses are $76K favourable 

 

Patient Access: 

Not too much change in target vs actual 

 

Patient volume: Sept. 2020 vs Sept. 2019 – significant change in early COVID. 

 

Patient Days are well planned.  Fairly even. 

 

Organization health - up to Sept. 30, 2020.  Not much O/T., but sick time showed an increase. 

 

8. CONSENT AGENDA: 

 

MOVED by Ms. P. Allen, SECONDED by Mr. A. Arya and CARRIED 

THAT the report from the October 26, 2020 Finance/Audit & Resources Committee meeting 

be accepted. 

 

9. CORRESPONDENCE/PRINTED MATTER: Media Report – FYI 

 

10. BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS, COMMENTS OR NOTICES OF MOTIONS: 
None 

 

11. DATE OF NEXT REGULAR MEETING: 

Thursday, December 10, 2020, 1700 hrs VIA: ZOOM  

 

12. ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further business to discuss, it was 

 

 MOVED by Ms. P. Allen, SECONDED by Ms. P. Skillings and CARRIED 

 THAT the November 05, 2020 Board of Directors meeting be adjourned at 1820 hours. 

 

 



 

Board of Directors – November 05, 2020 Page 6 
 

 

 ___________________________  ____________________________ 

 Anthony Paniccia, Chair   Cheryle Clark 

 Board of Directors    Recording Secretary 

/cc 



 

 
T

A
B

 B
 



 

Page 1 of 7      

 

 Report of the President & CEO  

 to the Board of Directors 

 

 

 

Date:      December 2020 

 
       

 
 
 

 

Strategic Direction - 

Strengthen the processes that drive a culture of patient safety and quality care.  

 

 

Flu Update  

All indicators of influenza activity remain exceptionally low for this time of year, despite continued 

monitoring for influenza across Canada.  

To date, there is no evidence of community circulation of influenza; however, influenza testing 

continues at elevated levels. Four laboratory detections of influenza were reported in week 47.  

Influenza surveillance indicators may be influenced by the COVID-19 pandemic, including changes in 

healthcare-seeking behaviour, impacts of public health measures and influenza testing practices. Current 

data should be interpreted with consideration to this context.  

 

      



 

Page 2 of 7      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For up-to-date data go to: 

https://www.canada.ca/en/public-health/services/diseases/flu-influenza/influenza-surveillance/weekly-influenza-

reports.html 

 

Paediatric Volumes 

We are experiencing the benefits of masking, PPE, hand hygiene, social distancing and vaccines when it 

comes to the Influenza season for 2020-21. 

We are also experiencing a positive impact on the number of paediatric patients being admitted to 

hospital.  

 

Strategic Direction - 

Uphold the principles of accountability and transparency 

 

Please find attached a link to the FULL version of the 2021-2024 Strategic Plan.  

 

 https://www.wrh.on.ca/uploads/Strategic_Plan_2021_2024.pdf  

 

We will now be working on “operationalizing” the plan as we have done in the past. Bringing life to the plan. 

 

https://www.canada.ca/en/public-health/services/diseases/flu-influenza/influenza-surveillance/weekly-influenza-reports.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/public-health/services/diseases/flu-influenza/influenza-surveillance/weekly-influenza-reports.html
https://www.wrh.on.ca/uploads/Strategic_Plan_2021_2024.pdf


 

Page 3 of 7      

 

Strategic Direction - 

Maintain a responsive and sustainable corporate financial strategy 

 

Financial Update 

 

For the seven (7) months ending October 31, 2020 we are reporting a surplus after net building 

amortization of $865,000 or a positive hospital margin of $2,637,000.  The Ministry of Health is making 

good on its endeavour to support its hospitals with the additional operating costs associated with 

COVID-19.  The Ministry has provided support of $8.1 million for those COVID-19 costs incurred in 

the April 2020 to July 2020 time period. A further $7.9 million in COVID-19 expenses remains 

unfunded for the August 1, 2020 to October 31, 2020 time period. These reimbursements will be 

recorded in our operating results once funding is confirmed in writing.  In addition the Ministry cash 

flowed approximately $7.0 million for pandemic pay which was previously paid out to qualifying staff 

members. 

 

 

Strategic Direction -  

Create a dynamic workplace culture that establishes WRH as an employer of choice 

 
 

Holiday Planning 

 

This year more than ever, we want to give everyone the opportunity to celebrate the season and show 

some holiday spirit. We just need to make sure we do it safely – and #SpreadJoyNotCovid through the 

rest of 2020! 

With that in mind, as the COVID-19 pandemic continues to intensify in terms of community numbers and 

hospitalizations, it is important to ensure staff are aware of important guidelines regarding holiday 

gatherings, travel and related matters. Please click here for a WRH Memo on holiday season guidelines: 

www.wrh.on.ca/uploads/Common/Memo_SpreadJoyNotCOVID_Nov_25.pdf  

 

Also, we are excited to announce some events for our WRH team this holiday season. Click here for a list 

of some upcoming events: 

www.wrh.on.ca/uploads/Common/WRH_Happy_Holidays.pdf 

Remember - #SpreadJoyNotCOVID this holiday season! 

 

http://www.wrh.on.ca/uploads/Common/Memo_SpreadJoyNotCOVID_Nov_25.pdf
http://www.wrh.on.ca/uploads/Common/WRH_Happy_Holidays.pdf


 

Page 4 of 7      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 5 of 7      

 

Support Available for our Team 

 

If you are feeling anxious, experiencing other mental health or addiction challenges or you cannot access 

your regular in-person counselling support, there are services you can access online or by phone: 

 ConnexOntario: Adults and frontline workers who are dealing with the realities of COVID-19 

can call ConnexOntario at 1-866-531-2600 for mental health, addictions and problem gambling 

support. 

 211 Ontario: For information and referrals for community, government, social and health 

services, including mental health resources across Ontario, call 211 or 1-877-330-3213. Live 

web chat is also available. 

 BounceBack: A free, evidence-based cognitive behavioural therapy (CBT) program that offers 

guided mental health self-help supports for adults and youth 15+ using workbooks, online 

videos and phone coaching. Call 1-866-345-0224. 

 Hope for Wellness Helpline: Indigenous peoples can call 1-855-242-3310 for immediate mental 

health counselling and crisis intervention across Canada (available in some Indigenous 

languages). Live web chat is also available. 

 Please click on the following link for information from our EAP provider.  They have put 

provisions in place to ensure their phones are answered 24/7.  Please don’t hesitate to reach out 

to them for support during this time.  They are available to help.  

o Phone:  1-844-720-1212  

o Website: Myfseap.ca 

o FEAP Communique COVID-19 March 16, 2020  

 

Strategic Direction - 

Redefine our collaboration with external partners to build a better healthcare 

ecosystem 

 

Research Study 

Researchers at the University of Windsor (Dr. Dana Ménard, Dr. Kendall Soucie, Dr. Laurie Freeman 

and Dr. Jody Ralph) are looking to find out more about the experiences of employees and physicians 

working in Windsor acute care settings during the COVID-19 pandemic. If you are an employee of any 

type (full or part-time, front-line or not) or a physician working at either the Metropolitan or Ouellette 

campus of the Windsor Regional Hospital, please take approximately 10 minutes to complete this online 

survey. Researchers will be asking about stress levels and use of mental health supports during the 

pandemic. The first 650 participants will receive a $5 electronic gift card to Tim Horton’s sent to their 

WRH email address.   

https://www.connexontario.ca/
tel:+18665312600
https://211ontario.ca/how-can-i-help/
tel:+18773303213
https://211ontario.ca/chat/
https://211ontario.ca/chat/
https://bouncebackontario.ca/
tel:+18663450224
https://www.hopeforwellness.ca/
tel:+18552423310
https://www.hopeforwellness.ca/
http://myfseap.ca/
https://www.wrh.on.ca/uploads/Coronavirus/FSEAP_Communique_COVID19_March_16_2020.pdf


 

Page 6 of 7      

 

This study has been cleared by the Windsor Regional Hospital and University of Windsor Research 

Ethics Boards. Participation is completely voluntary and your individual responses will be confidential. 

Completion of the study implies agreement to the consent form.  

[LINK TO SURVEY] 

For questions concerning this study, please contact Dr. Dana Ménard at dana.menard@uwindsor.ca. 

Strategic Direction - 

Continue the pursuit of NEW state-of-the-art acute care facilities 

 

New Windsor-Essex Hospitals System Stage 2 Community Engagement Plan Released  

The Program and Services Steering Committee overseeing plans for the new Windsor-Essex Hospitals 

System has released a plan to incorporate public input into the next stage of planning.  

The Stage 2 Community Engagement Strategy identifies Engagement Principles and a framework 

outlining levels of community participation. The document includes a decision-making model with site 

and program specific Public Advisory Groups that will provide input on different aspects of the project 

such as accessibility and diversity as well as program specific items (i.e.: emergency and cancer care)  

These groups will include a mix of healthcare professionals and community members. They will be 

chaired by community leaders from Windsor-Essex with expertise in the related area.   

“The conversations that happen in these groups will help shape the new facilities and the way care is 

delivered in them,” said David Musyj, President and CEO of Windsor Regional Hospital and Committee 

Co-Chair.  “We want everyone to find something they are passion about in the new system, get on 

board, and make a meaningful contribution to the future of our hospitals.”  

Stage 2 of the capital planning process includes the development of a Functional Program which is a 

very detailed description of how the new system will operate. It includes a look at staffing, space and 

equipment requirements and focuses on workflow for patients, staff and materials.   

The information collected from the advisory groups will not only inform stage 2 planning it will also be 

used to create key principals that will guide the project through completion.  

“We are working on a major system transformation and that that will require significant input from 

users,” says Janice Kaffer, Co-Chair of the Committee and President and CEO of Hôtel-Dieu Grace 

Healthcare.  “With members of the public at the table we can ensure the new facilities are as user-

friendly and patient and family-centred as possible.” 

 

The Engagement Plan is consistent with the Steering Committee’s goal of being inclusive and 

transparent at every stage in the process.  In Stage 1, community members had the opportunity to 

https://uwindsor.ca1.qualtrics.com/jfe/form/SV_01I45hib6ZgbcnH
mailto:dana.menard@uwindsor.ca


 

Page 7 of 7      

 

participate in 70+ town hall events and 8 radio phone-in discussions. Feedback from these events helped 

shape the Stage 1A & 1B proposals.  Community members also had the opportunity to provide feedback 

on criteria for the new acute care hospital location and apply for a position the subcommittee responsible 

for recommending a site for the new hospital. 

The Steering Committee has submitted the first of a 5-stage planning process and waiting for funding to 

move to Stage 2. The Engagement Strategy will begin early on in Stage 2 and continue to evolve 

throughout the process as more opportunities for participation arise.   

“Now that land we have acquired the land for the new hospital, we are eager to work with the 

community and turn our shared vision for a world-class hospital system for Windsor-Essex into a 

reality,” says Dave Cooke, Steering Committee Co-chair.  

To view the Community Engagement Plan: 

https://www.wrh.on.ca/uploads/Common/News/Stage_2_Community_Engagement_Plan.pdf  

  

Those interested are encouraged to visit windsorhospitals.ca to learn more about the project and 

subscribe to the Windsor Hospitals mailing list to get information about how to get involved when the 

project officially enters the next planning stage. 

 

 

 

 
 

We are grateful to members of the community for the generous support – through well-wishes, gifts-in-

kind and donations. The Windsor Regional Hospital Foundation has introduced a lottery licensed by the 

OLG (Ontario Lottery and Gaming Commission) to support the purchase of medical equipment. Visit 

wrh5050.ca for more information. 

https://www.wrh.on.ca/uploads/Common/News/Stage_2_Community_Engagement_Plan.pdf
https://www.wrh.on.ca/windsorhospitals
https://windsorhospitals.us5.list-manage.com/subscribe?u=658031ca87c1e53a2bb62e9be&id=8d28e48354
https://www.wrh.on.ca/WRH5050Raffle


 

 
 

T
A

B
 C

 
 

 
 

 



 

Schulich School of Medicine & Dentistry – Windsor Campus 

Dr. Murray O’Neil Medical Education Centre, Room 1100, 401 Sunset Ave., Windsor, ON, Canada N9B 3P4  

Telephone: 519-561-1411 Fax: 519-561-1413 www.uwindsor.ca/medicine 

 
 

Update to WRH Board of Directors (December 10, 2020) 

Announcements:  
Dr. Karin Hahn, Department of Oncology has been appointed Interim Chair/Chief of the Department 
of Oncology, Schulich School of Medicine & Dentistry, Western University, and its teaching hospitals, 
London Health Sciences Centre and St. Joseph's Health Care London, effective October 1, 2020 to 
March 31, 2021 or until a permanent Chair/Chief is appointed. 
 
Dr. Michelle Marlborough, Department of Psychiatry, has been appointed to the position of 
Assistant Dean, Postgraduate Learner Experience, at the Schulich School of Medicine & Dentistry, 
Western University effective November 1, 2020 to October 31, 2025. 
 
Dr. Elizabeth Osuch, Department of Psychiatry, has been re-appointed as the Dr. Joseph Rea Chair in 
Mood Disorders at the Schulich School of Medicine & Dentistry, Western University, effective 
August 1, 2020 to July 31, 2025. 
 
Dr. Donald Welsh, Department of Physiology & Pharmacology, has been re-appointed as the Cecil 
and Linda Rorabeck Chair in Molecular Neuroscience and Vascular Biology, at the Schulich School of 
Medicine & Dentistry, Western University, effective October 1, 2020 to March 31, 2025.  
 
Effective October 2, the Learner Equity & Wellness (LEW) Office at Schulich Medicine & Dentistry 
will be renamed to Learner Experience.  Learner experience has a new web based reporting for 
Learner Mistreatment to facilitate direct contact for all Learners (i.e. Residents and Medical 
Students) https://www.schulich.uwo.ca/learner_experience/learner_mistreatment/index.html 

 

In February 2020, Schulich Medicine & Dentistry’s Doctor of Medicine (MD) program submitted a 
required accreditation status report to the Committee on Accreditation of Canadian Medical Schools 
(CACMS) and the Liaison Committee on Medical Education (LCME). The report provided updates on 
the MD program and School’s work on two standards and elements: Diversity/Pipeline programs 
and partnerships, as well as Service-learning. In late October, the School was informed by the 
CACMS and LCME that the School is in compliance with these elements and now has a satisfactory 
rating for all elements. The accrediting bodies voted to continue accreditation for the balance of the 
eight-year term and requested no additional follow-up. The next full CACMS accreditation visit for 
the MD program and School will take place in the fall of 2023 (academic year 2023-2024). 

Awards 
 
Dr. Irene Hramiak, Department of Medicine at the Schulich School of Medicine & Dentistry, Western 
University, has been awarded a 2020 Mastership from the American College of Physicians (ACP).  
 
Dr. Lorelei Lingard, Department of Medicine has been named an Honorary Fellow of the Royal 
College of Physicians and Surgeons of Canada. 
 

https://www.schulich.uwo.ca/about/news/2020/october/announcement_learner_equity__wellness_office_changes_name_to_be_serve_learners.html
https://www.schulich.uwo.ca/learner_experience/learner_mistreatment/index.html
https://newsroom.royalcollege.ca/leading-scholar-on-medical-practice-communication-named-honorary-fellow/
https://newsroom.royalcollege.ca/leading-scholar-on-medical-practice-communication-named-honorary-fellow/


Events 
Visit the Schulich website Events Page for all upcoming events at https://www.schulich.uwo.ca/ 
 
Windsor Update: 
Dean John Yoo spent November 12 and 13 meeting virtually with clinical leadership here in Windsor. 
He emphasized the School’s vision regarding  

 Internationalization  

 Providing opportunity for advanced studies (MD+)  
 
I would like to congratulate the medical students receiving clerkship awards: 

 Anaesthesia- Conner Pepper 

 OB/GYN- Katie McLaughlin 

 Surgery- Sydney Eaton 

 Psych- Avalon O’Connor 

 Medicine - Kawmadi Abeytunge 

 Emergency Medicine - Alex Zubic 

 Family Medicine - Melissa Cowell 

 Paediatrics - Kawmadi Abeytunge 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
Lawrence Jacobs, MD, FRCPC, FACP 
Associate Dean, Windsor Campus 
Schulich School of Medicine & Dentistry, Western University.  

 

https://www.schulich.uwo.ca/


 

 
T

A
B

 D
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



Finance/Audit and Resources Committee

Financial Presentation (October 2020 Results)

Board of Directors Meeting

December 10, 2020



Financial Results – Hospital Operations (1,000’s of dollars)

October 31, 2020

Net Surplus/(Deficit) after building amortization $865 

Current Year 

Actual Budget

$ Variance

Fav/(Unfav) 

 % Variance

Fav/(Unfav)  

Revenue 326,472$             312,982$             13,490$               4.3%

Expenses

Salaries and Wages 152,199$             144,075$             (8,124)$                (5.6%)

Employee benefits 37,574                  37,308                  (266)                      (0.7%)

Employee ben. - future ben. costs 1,128                    1,128                    -                             0.0%

Medical staff remuneration 31,302                  30,231                  (1,071)                   (3.5%)

Medical & Surgical supplies 19,340                  21,550                  2,210                    10.3%

Drugs 38,388                  35,189                  (3,199)                   (9.1%)

Supplies & other expenses 35,873                  36,137                  264                       0.7%

Long term Interest 852                       922                       70                         7.6%

Equipment lease / rental 2,633                    1,391                    (1,242)                   (89.3%)

Equipment amortization 5,051                    5,131                    80                         1.6%

Total Expense 324,340$             313,062$             (11,278)$              (3.6%)

Surplus / (Deficit) From Hospital Operations 2,132$                  (80)$                      2,212$                  

COVID-19 related unfunded extraordinary 

operating expenses included above
15,731$               15,731$               

COVID-19 related unfunded non-ministry 

revenue loss included above
5,621$                  5,621$                  

YTD - Unearned Ministry volume funding 4,618$                  -$                      (4,618)$                

Surplus or (Deficit) / Revenue 0.65% -0.03% 0.68%



Financial Results

October 31, 2020

 Year-to-Date results include $7.9 million for COVID-19 extraordinary operating expenses 

which have not been funded.  Revenue losses total $9.6 million.

* Quality Based Procedures, Neuro Services, Cardiac & Wait 

Time

** Preferred Accommodation, Co-Payment, OHIP Technical &   

Professional Fees, & Cosmetic Procedures

*** Parking, Retail Food Services, Gift Shop, Leased Office 

Space (Physician), Patient Televisions, Print Shop & 

Referred In Services (Other Hospitals)

Windsor Regional Hospital 

Funded Unfunded

Compensation 3,315,976                 5,121,043                 

Pandemic Pay 7,015,305                 -                            

Medical Staff Fees 499,040                    317,099                    

Med. Surg. Supplies 1,940,434                 1,045,132                 

Drugs 45,233                      55,802                      

Other supplies & expense 708,557                    816,052                    

Equipment Expenses 1,213,947                 406,416                    

Renovations 912,932                    149,267                    

Total Operating Expense 15,651,424               7,910,811                 

Capital 1,750,145                 777,157$                  

Combined Total 17,401,569$             8,687,968$               

COVID-19 Expenses Year-to-Date October 2020
Windsor Regional Hospital 

Funded Unfunded

Volume Based* -                            4,617,959                   

Patient Serv ices** 583,344                    3,632,550                   

Recoveries*** -                            1,988,419                   

Total Revenue 583,344                    10,238,929$               

COVID-19 Revenue Loss Year-to-Date October 



Financial Results

October 31, 2020
 Year to Date Revenue

 Base and One-Time Funding $14 million favourable

 $3.4M in QBP revenue not earned as a result of elective surgery cancellations in April and May as 
well as lower than planned volumes from June to November

 Operating Room volumes are 8,573 lower than planned to date

 $1.2M unearned revenue in neuroservices, cardiac and wait time which are all volume-based

 One-time funding is $16M favourable year to date due to:

 Funding received for 2018/19 physician retro payments which were paid out as Medical 
Staff Remuneration

 One-time funding for Pandemic Pay of $7M 

 Reimbursement for April to July COVID-19 expenses $8M

 Patient Services $805,000 unfavourable

 Ministry Drug Reimbursements favourable $1.8 million 

 Other Recoveries $24,000 favourable

 Reduction of services earlier in the fiscal year has effected parking and retail operations

 Overall Revenue is favourable year to date by $13.8 Million



Financial Results

October 31, 2020
 Year to Date Expenses 

 Salary and Wages $8.1 Million unfavourable

 $1.5M unfavourable in the month of October

 Year-to-Date spending on COVID-19 isolation pay - $611K

 COVID-19 Sick pay - $450K

 Training for temporary new hires - $334K

 $1.9M has been paid to COVID Helpers to date

 Net Patient Services Revenue and Medical Staff Remuneration $1.8M unfavourable

 Med Surg Supplies $2.2M Favourable

 Savings have been incurred in the perioperative programs due to volume reductions:

 Met Campus  $961K 

 Ouellette Campus $1.8M

 Incremental spending on Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) year to date is $2.3M.



Financial Results

October 31, 2020
 Year to Date Expenses 

 Drugs $3.2M Unfavourable

 Chemo and Renal drug expenses and recoveries are balanced

 Retail pharmacy net drug expense to revenue is $40,000 favourable

 Drug expenses for clinical areas at the Met campus are $323K under budget and at the Ouellette campus 

$445K favourable year to date.

 Other Supplies and Expenses $264K Favourable

 Minor equipment purchases $1,676,000 mainly related to COVID-19

 $897K in one time set up costs for the St. Clair College Field Hospital

 Utility costs are $1,066,000 favourable YTD.  The Ontario Electricity Rebate (OER) of 31.8% that was 

set to expire on October 31, 2020 has been revised to 33.2% and extended to April 30, 2021

 Rental/Lease of Equipment $1.25M Unfavourable

 Bed rentals to ensure capacity for COVID-19 $465K

 Bed rentals for St. Clair College Field Hospital $780K



Patient Access

October 31, 2020

YTD Actual Target Variance

Met Campus

Acute Average LOS 4.44                    4.54                    0.10

Psych Average – Adolescent LOS 6.88                    6.44                    (0.44)

Ouellette Campus

Acute Average LOS 7.86                    7.33                    (0.53)

Psych Average – Adult LOS 12.18                  12.43                  0.25



Patient Volume

October 31, 2020

Community service visits 

includes 49,685 visits to 

the Assessment Centres



Organizational Health

October 31, 2020

Red and Green (trend) year to date are showing Green/better than or Red/worse than prior month

Trend YTD Actual Target Variance

Met Campus

% Sick Time Better 5.70% 3.70% (2.00%)

% Overt ime Worse 2.40% 2.30% (0.10%)

FTE Staffing 1,670.9      1,707.0 36.03          

Ouellette Campus

% Sick Time Worse 6.20% 3.70% (2.50%)

% Overt ime Worse 4.90% 2.30% (2.60%)

FTE Staffing 1,415.9      1,421.5 5.66            





 

 
 

 
 

 
T

A
B

 E
 

 
 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – November 30, 2020 

 

MOTION/ACTION SHEET 
 

From The 
 

FINANCE/AUDIT & RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING 
General Session 

 

Monday, November 30, 2020 
 
 
THERE ARE NO RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE FINANCE/AUDIT & RESOURCES 
COMMITTEE 
 
 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – November 30, 2020 

 
 

MINUTES from the meeting of the FINANCE/AUDIT & RESOURCES COMMITTEE (General 
Session) held on Monday, November 30, 2020 Via Zoom (following the In-Camera Session). 
 
PRESENT: 
Penny Allen         Beth Yeh 
Dr. Laurie Freeman       Dianne Aziz 
Paul Lachance        Ian McLeod 
            Sandra Boglitch 
 
Anthony Paniccia, Chair of the Board 
 
REGRETS: 
Arvind Arya 
Dr. Larry Jacobs 
 
STAFF: 
David Musyj         Kevin Marshall 
Mark Fathers         Mary Macera 
Heidi Zimmer 
 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mrs. Allen called the meeting to order at 5:45 p.m. 
 
The proceedings were recorded by Mary Macera. 
 
2.0 APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

MOVED by Dianne Aziz, SECONDED by Paul Lachance that the General 
Finance/Audit & Resources Committee Agenda of Monday, November 30, 2020 
be approved. 

 
  CARRIED. 
 
3.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
No “Conflict of Interest” was declared. 
 
4.0 PRESENTATIONS 
 
There were No Presentations. 
 
 
 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – November 30, 2020 

Page Two 

 
5.0 FOR APPROVAL / RECOMMENDATION 
 
5.1 Minutes of Previous Meeting – Monday, October 26, 2020 
 
 The Finance/Audit & Resources Committee Minutes of the General Meeting of Monday, 

October 26, 2020 were previously circulated to all members. 
 
 It is noted that a correction was made on Page 1 of these Minutes of Meeting to reflect a 

change in date of meeting. 
 

MOVED by Ian McLeod, SECONDED by Paul Lachance that the General Meeting 
Minutes from the Finance/Audit & Resources Committee of Monday, October 
26, 2020 be approved. 
 
CARRIED. 

 
6.0 FOR DISCUSSION 
 
6.1  Monthly Operating Results Report – October 31, 2020 (As Appended) 
 

Ms. Zimmer provided the financial presentation. 
 

 The operating results for the seven months ended October 31, 2020 result in a surplus 
of $865,000 ($2,637,000 positive hospital margin) 
 

 3 items to highlight: 
o operating results include a combined $21.4 million in higher costs and lost revenue 

attributable to meeting clinical responsibilities related to COVID 
o if current unfunded $7.9 million due to COVID expenses had been funded, the 

surplus for the month end would have equated to $8.8 million with a Hospital Margin 
of $10.5 million 

o funding details for the 2020-2021 fiscal year 
 

 Year to Date revenue – base and one-time funding - $14 million favourable 
 Patient services - $805,000 unfavourable 
 Ministry drug reimbursements favourable by $1.8 million 
 Other recoveries - $24,000 favourable 
 Overall revenue is favourable year to date by $13.8 million 
 Year to Date expenses include Salary and Wages (favourable), Net Patient Services 

Revenue (unfavourable) and Medical Staff Remuneration (unfavourable) and Med Surg 
Supplies (favourable) 

 Drugs are $3.2 million unfavourable 
 Other supplies and expenses are $264,000 favourable 
 Rental/lease of equipment is $1.25 million unfavourable 
 Patient access – Met and Ouellette Campuses – very slight variances at both 
 Patient volume – community service visits include 49,685 visits to the Assessment 

Centres 



Finance/Audit & Resources Committee – November 30, 2020 

Page Three 

 
 Met Campus sick time is trending better; overtime is worse 
 Ouellette Campus sick time is trending worse; overtime is also trending worse 

 
6.2  Budget Risk Item(s) Schedule as at October 31, 2020 
 

Ms. Zimmer reported that there are a few changes from the previous month.  We are still 
projecting a $436,000 surplus at the year end. 
 
Patient services look more optimistic than originally estimated. 
 
Potential Year End Operating Result - $17 million is Best Case, ($27 million) is Worst Case 
and $436,000 is Most Likely (which remains unchanged).  Mr. Fathers added that it is truly 
tough to predict.  A couple of weeks ago, we were having discussions about ramping up 
surgeries and now having discussions as to possibly ramping down. 

 
7.0 FOR INFORMATION 
 
The following correspondence is provided to the committee members for their information. 
 
7.1 Ontario Health’s Operating Model:  Patient Perspective and Integrated Top-Line 

Organizational Structure (September 9, 2020) 
 
7.2  President’s Report – November 30, 2020 
 
  For the community members information. 
 
8.0 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The Finance/Audit & Resources Committee will meet on Monday, December 21, 2020 at 5:00 
p.m. Via Zoom. 
 
9.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 
There was no further business; therefore, Mrs. Allen adjourned the meeting at 6:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________             __________________________________ 
Mrs. Penny Allen, Chair & Treasurer      Mary Macera 
FinAudit&Resources_Minutes        Recorder 
20201130 































 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
A

B
 F

 
 



Media Report  

 to the Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

Date:  December  Report 
 

       

 

 

One hour COVID test machine arrives in Windsor 

AM800, Oct. 20, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/one-hour-covid-test-machine-arrives-in-windsor-

1.13756577 

 

New screening process for hospital visitors 

Blackburn News, Oct. 20, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/10/20/new-screening-process-hospital-

visitors/ 

 

WRH rolls out new online COVID-19 screening form 

AM800, Oct. 20, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-rolls-out-new-online-covid-

19-screening-form-1.13761004 

 

Anti-COVID rally planned for Sunday in Windsor 

AM800, Oct. 20, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/anti-covid-rally-planned-for-sunday-in-windsor-

1.13757872 

 

WRH reduces hours at St. Clair College COVID-19 Assessment Centre 

CTV Windsor, Oct. 20, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wrh-reduces-hours-at-st-clair-college-covid-19-assessment-centre-

1.5152592 

 

Survey shows strong support for hospital site in wards outside core 

Windsor Star, Oct. 21, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/survey-shows-very-strong-support-for-hospital-site-in-

wards-outside-core 

 

Reader letter: Hospital upgrade repair funds greatly appreciated 

Windsor Star, Oct. 21, 2020 

 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/one-hour-covid-test-machine-arrives-in-windsor-1.13756577
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/one-hour-covid-test-machine-arrives-in-windsor-1.13756577
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/10/20/new-screening-process-hospital-visitors/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/10/20/new-screening-process-hospital-visitors/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-rolls-out-new-online-covid-19-screening-form-1.13761004
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-regional-hospital-rolls-out-new-online-covid-19-screening-form-1.13761004
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/anti-covid-rally-planned-for-sunday-in-windsor-1.13757872
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/anti-covid-rally-planned-for-sunday-in-windsor-1.13757872
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wrh-reduces-hours-at-st-clair-college-covid-19-assessment-centre-1.5152592
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wrh-reduces-hours-at-st-clair-college-covid-19-assessment-centre-1.5152592
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/survey-shows-very-strong-support-for-hospital-site-in-wards-outside-core
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/survey-shows-very-strong-support-for-hospital-site-in-wards-outside-core


https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-hospital-upgrade-repair-funds-greatly-

appreciated 

 

‘I don’t think I’ve ever seen so much interest in the flu shot’: demand soars for flu vaccine 

CTV Windsor, Oct. 21, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/i-don-t-think-i-ve-ever-seen-so-much-interest-in-the-flu-shot-

demand-soars-for-flu-vaccine-1.5155344 

 

Tracking COVID-19 in wastewater a good indicator of community spread, researchers 

confirm 

CBC Windsor, Oct. 21, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-waste-water-community-cases-1.5771666 

 

Bollywood fundraiser donates $18,000 to WRH 

Blackburn News, Oct. 21, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/10/22/bollywood-fundraiser-donates-

18000-wrh/ 

 

Bollywood musical in India raises $18,000 for WRH 

Windsor Star, Oct. 21, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/bollywood-musical-in-india-raises-18000-for-windsor-

regional-hospital 

 

Nine drug overdoses reported in 24-hour period in Windsor-Essex 

AM800, Oct. 23, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/9-drug-overdoses-reported-in-24-hour-period-in-

windsor-essex-1.13778758 

 

Increase in drug-related overdoses reported in Windsor-Essex 

CTV Windsor, Oct. 22, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/increase-in-drug-related-overdoses-reported-in-windsor-essex-

1.5156764 

 

Windsor police will soon equip some officers with life-saving naloxone 

CBC Windsor, Oct. 22, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/opioid-overdose-windsor-essex-1.5773388 

 

Increased overdoses reported in Windsor-Essex 

Blackburn News, Oct. 23, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/10/22/increased-overdoses-reported-

windsor-essex/ 

 

Windsor-Essex health officials remain on alert for 2nd wave despite lull in COVID-19 cases 

CBC Windsor, Oct. 24, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-windsor-essex-second-wave-1.5774962 

No mask protest movement gains supporters 

https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-hospital-upgrade-repair-funds-greatly-appreciated
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-hospital-upgrade-repair-funds-greatly-appreciated
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/i-don-t-think-i-ve-ever-seen-so-much-interest-in-the-flu-shot-demand-soars-for-flu-vaccine-1.5155344
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/i-don-t-think-i-ve-ever-seen-so-much-interest-in-the-flu-shot-demand-soars-for-flu-vaccine-1.5155344
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-waste-water-community-cases-1.5771666
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/10/22/bollywood-fundraiser-donates-18000-wrh/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/10/22/bollywood-fundraiser-donates-18000-wrh/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/bollywood-musical-in-india-raises-18000-for-windsor-regional-hospital
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/bollywood-musical-in-india-raises-18000-for-windsor-regional-hospital
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/9-drug-overdoses-reported-in-24-hour-period-in-windsor-essex-1.13778758
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/9-drug-overdoses-reported-in-24-hour-period-in-windsor-essex-1.13778758
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/increase-in-drug-related-overdoses-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5156764
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/increase-in-drug-related-overdoses-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5156764
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/opioid-overdose-windsor-essex-1.5773388
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/10/22/increased-overdoses-reported-windsor-essex/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/10/22/increased-overdoses-reported-windsor-essex/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-windsor-essex-second-wave-1.5774962


Windsor Star, Oct. 25, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/no-mask-protest-movement-gains-supporters 

 

More than 100 people gather for COVID-19 protest in Windsor 

AM800, Oct. 25, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/more-than-100-people-gather-for-covid-19-protest-in-

windsor-1.13795613 

 

Windsor protesters rally against COVID-19 protocols 

CTV Windsor, Oct. 25, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-protestors-rally-against-covid-19-protocols-1.5160294 

 

 

Medical officer of health speaks out against anti-COVID rally 

AM800, Oct. 24, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/medical-officer-of-health-speaks-out-against-anti-covid-

rally-1.13781370 

 

Do Good Divas to host virtual fundraiser 

Windsor Star, Oct. 24, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/do-good-divas 

 

Local health care workers asked to complete survey about mental health during pandemic| 

CTV Windsor, Oct. 26, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/local-healthcare-workers-asked-to-complete-survey-about-mental-

health-during-pandemic-1.5161265 

Climbing COVID-19 cases in Ontario concerns top doc in Windsor-Essex 

Windsor Star, Oct. 26, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/climbing-covid-19-cases-in-ontario-concerns-top-doc-

in-windsor-essex 

 

No mask protest movement gains supporters 

Windsor Star, Oct. 26, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/no-mask-protest-movement-gains-supporters 

 

Dr. Ahmed begging community to follow COVID-19 safety measures 

AM800, Oct.. 26, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/dr-ahmed-begging-community-to-follow-covid-19-

safety-measures-1.13800830 

 

Windsor, provincial COVID-19 numbers go in different directions 

CBC Windsor, Oct. 26, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid-oct-26-1.5776885 

 

Mayor asks council to stand with me to support new hospital 

Windsor Star, Nov. 2, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/no-mask-protest-movement-gains-supporters
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/more-than-100-people-gather-for-covid-19-protest-in-windsor-1.13795613
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/more-than-100-people-gather-for-covid-19-protest-in-windsor-1.13795613
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-protestors-rally-against-covid-19-protocols-1.5160294
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/medical-officer-of-health-speaks-out-against-anti-covid-rally-1.13781370
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/medical-officer-of-health-speaks-out-against-anti-covid-rally-1.13781370
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/do-good-divas
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/local-healthcare-workers-asked-to-complete-survey-about-mental-health-during-pandemic-1.5161265
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/local-healthcare-workers-asked-to-complete-survey-about-mental-health-during-pandemic-1.5161265
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/climbing-covid-19-cases-in-ontario-concerns-top-doc-in-windsor-essex
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/climbing-covid-19-cases-in-ontario-concerns-top-doc-in-windsor-essex
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/no-mask-protest-movement-gains-supporters
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/dr-ahmed-begging-community-to-follow-covid-19-safety-measures-1.13800830
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/dr-ahmed-begging-community-to-follow-covid-19-safety-measures-1.13800830
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid-oct-26-1.5776885


https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/mayor-asks-council-to-stand-with-me-to-support-new-

hospital 

 

‘It scares me’ – WECHU reports 22 new COVID-19 cases in Windsor-Essex 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 2, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/it-scares-me-wechu-reports-22-new-covid-19-cases-in-windsor-

essex-1.5170803 

Video: https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/video?clipId=2068555 

 

'It scares me:' WECHU concerned about COVID-19 spread as 22 new cases reported 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 2, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid19-nov-2-1.5786139 

 

 

 

COVID-19 case at the University of Windsor 

AM800, Nov. 2, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-case-at-the-university-of-windsor-1.13868782 

 

COVID-19 case identified at Roseland Public School 

Blackburn News, Nov. 2, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/02/covid-19-case-identified-

roseland-public-school/ 

 

50-50 draw changing lives together 

AM800, Nov. 2, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/audio/the-afternoon-news-50-50-draw-changing-lives-

together-1.13864280 

 

Essex County Warden McNamara proud to have weathered storm, looks forward to strong 
future (references new hospital project) 
Windsor Star, Nov. 3, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/essex-county-warden 
 
Confirmed influenza in Windsor-Essex 
AM800, Nov. 3, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/confirmed-influenza-in-windsor-essex-1.13872613 
 
WECHU reports first confirmed flu case 
Blackburn News, Nov. 3, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/03/wechu-reports-first-
confirmed-flu-case/ 
 
Confirmed case at University of Windsor 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 3, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/mayor-asks-council-to-stand-with-me-to-support-new-hospital
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/mayor-asks-council-to-stand-with-me-to-support-new-hospital
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/it-scares-me-wechu-reports-22-new-covid-19-cases-in-windsor-essex-1.5170803
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/it-scares-me-wechu-reports-22-new-covid-19-cases-in-windsor-essex-1.5170803
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/video?clipId=2068555
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid19-nov-2-1.5786139
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-case-at-the-university-of-windsor-1.13868782
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/02/covid-19-case-identified-roseland-public-school/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/02/covid-19-case-identified-roseland-public-school/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/audio/the-afternoon-news-50-50-draw-changing-lives-together-1.13864280
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/audio/the-afternoon-news-50-50-draw-changing-lives-together-1.13864280
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/essex-county-warden
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/confirmed-influenza-in-windsor-essex-1.13872613
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/03/wechu-reports-first-confirmed-flu-case/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/03/wechu-reports-first-confirmed-flu-case/


https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/university-windsor-covid-case-1.5787620 
 
University of Windsor reports first on-campus COVID case 
Windsor Star, Nov. 3, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/university-of-windsor-reports-first-on-campus-
covid-case 
 
COVID-19 case identified at University of Windsor 
Blackburn News, Nov. 3, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/03/covid-19-case-identified-
university-windsor/ 
 
Windsor mayor asking council to support proposed new hospital 
AM800, Nov. 4, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-mayor-asking-council-to-support-proposed-
new-hospital-1.13880085 
 
Top doc again sounds alarm against misinformation; WECHU reports three new COVID-19 
case 
Windsor Star, Nov. 4, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/top-doc-again-sounds-alarm-against-
misinformation-wechu-reports-three-new-covid-19-cases 
 
Flu shot shortage hits Windsor-Essex pharmacies as demand soars  
CBC Windsor, Nov. 4, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/flu-shot-windsor-essex-demand-1.5790139 
 
WECHU assessing its colour coded alert systems as province introduces its own colour based 
alerts 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 4, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/wechu-assessing-its-colour-coded-alert-system-as-
province-introduces-its-own-colour-based-alerts-1.5789282 

Local COVID-19 alert system changing to match provincial framework 
AM800, Nov. 4, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-covid-19-alert-system-changing-to-match-
provincial-framework-1.13885194 
 
WECHU to use local COVID-19 indicator for now 
Blackburn News, Nov. 4, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/04/wechu-use-local-covid-19-
indicator-for-now/ 
 
CAMPP hopes to sway council votes with report on new regional hospital 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/university-windsor-covid-case-1.5787620
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/university-of-windsor-reports-first-on-campus-covid-case
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/university-of-windsor-reports-first-on-campus-covid-case
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/03/covid-19-case-identified-university-windsor/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/03/covid-19-case-identified-university-windsor/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-mayor-asking-council-to-support-proposed-new-hospital-1.13880085
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-mayor-asking-council-to-support-proposed-new-hospital-1.13880085
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/top-doc-again-sounds-alarm-against-misinformation-wechu-reports-three-new-covid-19-cases
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/top-doc-again-sounds-alarm-against-misinformation-wechu-reports-three-new-covid-19-cases
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/flu-shot-windsor-essex-demand-1.5790139
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/wechu-assessing-its-colour-coded-alert-system-as-province-introduces-its-own-colour-based-alerts-1.5789282
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/wechu-assessing-its-colour-coded-alert-system-as-province-introduces-its-own-colour-based-alerts-1.5789282
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-covid-19-alert-system-changing-to-match-provincial-framework-1.13885194
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-covid-19-alert-system-changing-to-match-provincial-framework-1.13885194
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/04/wechu-use-local-covid-19-indicator-for-now/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/04/wechu-use-local-covid-19-indicator-for-now/


AM800, Nov. 9, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/campp-hopes-to-sway-council-votes-with-report-on-

new-regional-hospital-1.13914320 

 

'Definitely headed in the wrong direction:' Health unit warns as Windsor-Essex COVID-19 

cases rise 

Nov. 9, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-windsor-essex-1.5795056 

 

‘The warning bells are ringing loudly for us’ – COVID-19 cases surge in Windsor-Essex 

Windsor Star, Nov. 9, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-8 

 

Health unit investigates Halloween party on University of Windsor campus 

Windsor Star, Nov. 9, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-investigates-halloween-party-on-university-

of-windsor-campus 

 

Student Halloween party at UWindsor under investigation 

AM800, Nov. 9, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/student-halloween-party-at-uwindsor-under-

investigation-1.13916718 

 

Nursing students at St. Clair College, University of Windsor test positive for COVID-19 

Blackburn News, Nov. 9, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/09/nursing-students-st-clair-college-

university-windsor-test-positive-covid-19/ 

 

Nursing students test positive for COVID-19 while participating in placements at WRH 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 8, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/nursing-students-test-positive-for-covid-19-while-participating-in-

placements-at-windsor-regional-hospital-1.5180336 

 

Several nursing students test positive for COVID-19 

Windsorite.ca, Nov. 8, 2020 

https://windsorite.ca/2020/11/several-nursing-students-test-positive-for-covid-19/ 

 

Positive cases of COVID-19 trend upward over the weekend in Windsor-Essex County 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 8, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-update-windsor-nov-8-1.5794554 

 

Windsor Regional Cancer Centre recognized by Cancer Care Ontario 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 8, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-cancer-centre-recognized-by-cancer-care-ontario-

1.5180003 

 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/campp-hopes-to-sway-council-votes-with-report-on-new-regional-hospital-1.13914320
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/campp-hopes-to-sway-council-votes-with-report-on-new-regional-hospital-1.13914320
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-windsor-essex-1.5795056
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-8
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-investigates-halloween-party-on-university-of-windsor-campus
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-investigates-halloween-party-on-university-of-windsor-campus
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/student-halloween-party-at-uwindsor-under-investigation-1.13916718
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/student-halloween-party-at-uwindsor-under-investigation-1.13916718
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/09/nursing-students-st-clair-college-university-windsor-test-positive-covid-19/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/09/nursing-students-st-clair-college-university-windsor-test-positive-covid-19/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/nursing-students-test-positive-for-covid-19-while-participating-in-placements-at-windsor-regional-hospital-1.5180336
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/nursing-students-test-positive-for-covid-19-while-participating-in-placements-at-windsor-regional-hospital-1.5180336
https://windsorite.ca/2020/11/several-nursing-students-test-positive-for-covid-19/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-update-windsor-nov-8-1.5794554
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-cancer-centre-recognized-by-cancer-care-ontario-1.5180003
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-cancer-centre-recognized-by-cancer-care-ontario-1.5180003


Reader letter: CAMPP should not be vilified for ongoing questions on future of city’s 

hospital care 

Windsor Star, Nov. 8, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-campp-should-not-be-vilified-for-ongoing-

questions-on-future-of-citys-hospital-care 

 

Guest column: hospital location not best choice for this community 

Windsor Star, Nov. 7, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/guest-column-hospital-location-not-best-choice-for-this-

community 

 

 

 

COVID-19 costing WRH $2M per month 

Windsor Star, Nov. 7, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-costing-windsor-regional-hospital-2m-per-

month 

 

Third COVID-19 protest staged in downtown Windsor 

AM800, Nov. 8, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/third-covid-19-protest-staged-in-downtown-windsor-

1.13913564 

 

Listen: Necessary trip across the border lands hospital CEO in self quarantine 

AM800, Nov. 10, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/listen-necessary-trip-across-the-border-lands-hospital-ceo-in-
self-quarantine-1.13925573 
 

Council supports new hospital and location in 7-4 vote 

Windsor Star, Nov. 9, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/council-supports-new-hospital-and-location-in-7-4-vote 
 

Windsor throws support behind megahospital location 

Blackburn News, Nov. 10, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/10/windsor-throws-support-behind-mega-
hospital-location/ 
 

City Council puts support behind new mega hospital in narrow vote 

AM800, Nov. 9, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-council-puts-support-behind-new-mega-hospital-in-
narrow-vote-1.13922806 
 

After hours of debate, Windsor council votes to push province to prioritize mega-hospital 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 10, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-mega-hsopital-approved-1.5796158 
 

Windsor City Council in favour of proposed mega hospital 

https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-campp-should-not-be-vilified-for-ongoing-questions-on-future-of-citys-hospital-care
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-campp-should-not-be-vilified-for-ongoing-questions-on-future-of-citys-hospital-care
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/guest-column-hospital-location-not-best-choice-for-this-community
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/guest-column-hospital-location-not-best-choice-for-this-community
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-costing-windsor-regional-hospital-2m-per-month
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-costing-windsor-regional-hospital-2m-per-month
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/third-covid-19-protest-staged-in-downtown-windsor-1.13913564
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/third-covid-19-protest-staged-in-downtown-windsor-1.13913564
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/listen-necessary-trip-across-the-border-lands-hospital-ceo-in-self-quarantine-1.13925573
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/listen-necessary-trip-across-the-border-lands-hospital-ceo-in-self-quarantine-1.13925573
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/council-supports-new-hospital-and-location-in-7-4-vote
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/10/windsor-throws-support-behind-mega-hospital-location/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/10/windsor-throws-support-behind-mega-hospital-location/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-council-puts-support-behind-new-mega-hospital-in-narrow-vote-1.13922806
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/city-council-puts-support-behind-new-mega-hospital-in-narrow-vote-1.13922806
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-mega-hsopital-approved-1.5796158


CTV Windsor, Nov. 10, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-city-council-votes-in-favour-of-proposed-mega-hospital-1.5182136 
 

Nursing placements halted at Windsor Regional Hospital after positive COVID-19 tests 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 9, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/wrh-suspends-student-placements-1.5795946 
 

Staff, patients at WRH being tested for COVID-19 

AM800, Nov. 9, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/staff-patients-at-windsor-regional-hospital-being-tested-for-
covid-19-1.13924099 
 
 

WRH recommends 28 people test for COVID-19 after nursing students test positive 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 9, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-recommends-28-people-test-for-covid-19-after-
nursing-students-test-positive-1.5181437 
 

Several students attending placements at Windsor Regional Hospital test positive for COVID-
19 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 9, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/nursing-students-university-of-windsor-covid-19-1.5794880 
 
WRH reports five COVID-19 cases among nursing students 
Windsor Star, Nov. 9, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-regional-hospital-reports-five-covid-19-cases-
among-nursing-students 
 
University of Windsor urges social distancing after unauthorized Halloween party 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 10, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/uwindsor-urges-social-distancing-after-unauthorized-halloween-party-
1.5180607 
 
Health unit investigates Halloween party on University of Windsor campus 
Windsor Star, Nov. 10, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-investigates-halloween-party-on-university-of-
windsor-campus 
 
More COVID-19 cases linked to Windsor area public schools 
Blackburn News, Nov. 10, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/10/more-covid-19-cases-linked-to-
windsor-area-public-schools/ 
 
COVID risk sends 22 St. Joseph’s high school students home 
Windsor Star, Nov. 10, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-risk-sends-22-st-josephs-high-school-students-home 
 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-city-council-votes-in-favour-of-proposed-mega-hospital-1.5182136
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/wrh-suspends-student-placements-1.5795946
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/staff-patients-at-windsor-regional-hospital-being-tested-for-covid-19-1.13924099
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/staff-patients-at-windsor-regional-hospital-being-tested-for-covid-19-1.13924099
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-recommends-28-people-test-for-covid-19-after-nursing-students-test-positive-1.5181437
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-recommends-28-people-test-for-covid-19-after-nursing-students-test-positive-1.5181437
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/nursing-students-university-of-windsor-covid-19-1.5794880
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-regional-hospital-reports-five-covid-19-cases-among-nursing-students
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-regional-hospital-reports-five-covid-19-cases-among-nursing-students
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/uwindsor-urges-social-distancing-after-unauthorized-halloween-party-1.5180607
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/uwindsor-urges-social-distancing-after-unauthorized-halloween-party-1.5180607
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-investigates-halloween-party-on-university-of-windsor-campus
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-investigates-halloween-party-on-university-of-windsor-campus
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/10/more-covid-19-cases-linked-to-windsor-area-public-schools/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/10/more-covid-19-cases-linked-to-windsor-area-public-schools/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-risk-sends-22-st-josephs-high-school-students-home


Six new COVID-19 cases reported in Windsor-Essex 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 10, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/six-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5182319 
 
Six new cases of COVID-19 in Windsor-Essex 
AM800, Nov. 10, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/six-new-cases-of-covid-19-in-windsor-essex-1.13925431 
 
Six new COVID-19 cases in Windsor-Essex 
Blackburn News, Nov. 10, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/10/six-new-covid-19-cases-windsor-essex-
2/ 
 
 

Jarvis: While we debate the new hospital’s location, COVID-19 cases surge 

Windsor Star, Nov. 10, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-while-we-debate-the-new-hospitals-location-covid-19-
cases-surge 

 

CAMPP waiting to hear from divisional court on how to fight against mega-hospital plans 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 10, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/mega-hospital-campp-divisional-court-1.5797815 
 

Cross-border trip identifies bigger issue: Musyj 

AM800, Nov. 11, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/cross-border-trip-identifies-bigger-issue-musyj-1.13927524 

 

WRH CEO self isolating after securing medication stateside 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 10, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-ceo-self-isolating-after-securing-

medication-stateside-1.5182830 

 

Hospital CEO David Musyj under quarantine after crossing border to get patient meds 

Windsor Star, Nov. 10, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/hospital-ceo-david-musyj-under-quarantine-after-crossing-
border-to-get-patient-meds 

 

WRH launches Coping with Covid interactive webcasts 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 10, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-launches-coping-with-covid-interactive-

webcasts-1.5182737 

 

Additional hospital beds coming to Chatham-Kent, Windsor-Essex 

Blackburn News, Nov. 10, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/chatham/chatham-news/2020/11/10/additional-hospital-beds-coming-

chatham-kent-windsor-essex/ 

 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/six-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5182319
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/six-new-cases-of-covid-19-in-windsor-essex-1.13925431
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/10/six-new-covid-19-cases-windsor-essex-2/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/10/six-new-covid-19-cases-windsor-essex-2/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-while-we-debate-the-new-hospitals-location-covid-19-cases-surge
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-while-we-debate-the-new-hospitals-location-covid-19-cases-surge
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/mega-hospital-campp-divisional-court-1.5797815
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/cross-border-trip-identifies-bigger-issue-musyj-1.13927524
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-ceo-self-isolating-after-securing-medication-stateside-1.5182830
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-ceo-self-isolating-after-securing-medication-stateside-1.5182830
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/hospital-ceo-david-musyj-under-quarantine-after-crossing-border-to-get-patient-meds
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/hospital-ceo-david-musyj-under-quarantine-after-crossing-border-to-get-patient-meds
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-launches-coping-with-covid-interactive-webcasts-1.5182737
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-regional-hospital-launches-coping-with-covid-interactive-webcasts-1.5182737
https://blackburnnews.com/chatham/chatham-news/2020/11/10/additional-hospital-beds-coming-chatham-kent-windsor-essex/
https://blackburnnews.com/chatham/chatham-news/2020/11/10/additional-hospital-beds-coming-chatham-kent-windsor-essex/


COVID-19 outbreak declared in University of Windsor student residence 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 10, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/covid-19-outbreak-declared-in-university-of-windsor-student-

residence-1.5182798 

 

COVID-19 outbreak at University of Windsor residence after 18 students go to Halloween 

party 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 10, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-windsor-essex-1.5796705 

 
COVID-19 outbreak declared at University of Windsor residence 
Windsor Star, Nov. 10, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-outbreak-declared-at-uwindsor-residence 

 

COVID-19 outbreak declared at University of Windsor student residence 

AM800, Nov. 10, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-declared-at-uwindsor-student-residence-
1.13926939 

 

Doctor plans to turn long abandoned downtown eyesore into medical centre 

Windsor Star, Nov. 10, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/doctor-plans-to-turn-long-abandoned-downtown-eyesore-
into-medical-centre 

 

Hospital CEO drives across U.S. border to secure medication for ICU patient amid COVID-19 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 11, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/pandemic-windsor-medication-hospital-1.5798369 
 
Jarvis: COVID-19 cases going up, restrictions going down 
Windsor Star, Nov. 11, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-covid-19-cases-going-up-restrictions-going-
down 
 
WRH asking patients to screen for COVID-19 online before scheduled appointments 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 11, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wrh-asking-patients-to-screen-for-covid-19-online-before-
scheduled-appointments-1.5185760 
 
Coping With Covid Community Discussion 
AM800, Nov. 11, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/watch-coping-with-covid-community-discussion-
1.13932309 
 
Everyone just wanted to hang out, says UWindsor student about party that led to COVID 
outbreak 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/covid-19-outbreak-declared-in-university-of-windsor-student-residence-1.5182798
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/covid-19-outbreak-declared-in-university-of-windsor-student-residence-1.5182798
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-windsor-essex-1.5796705
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-outbreak-declared-at-uwindsor-residence
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-declared-at-uwindsor-student-residence-1.13926939
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-outbreak-declared-at-uwindsor-student-residence-1.13926939
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/doctor-plans-to-turn-long-abandoned-downtown-eyesore-into-medical-centre
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/doctor-plans-to-turn-long-abandoned-downtown-eyesore-into-medical-centre
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/pandemic-windsor-medication-hospital-1.5798369
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-covid-19-cases-going-up-restrictions-going-down
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-covid-19-cases-going-up-restrictions-going-down
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wrh-asking-patients-to-screen-for-covid-19-online-before-scheduled-appointments-1.5185760
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wrh-asking-patients-to-screen-for-covid-19-online-before-scheduled-appointments-1.5185760
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/watch-coping-with-covid-community-discussion-1.13932309
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/watch-coping-with-covid-community-discussion-1.13932309


CBC Windsor, Nov. 11, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/university-windsor-covid-outbreak-student-
1.5798850 
 
COVID-19 outbreak declared at UWindsor residence 
Windsor Star, Nov. 11, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-outbreak-declared-at-uwindsor-residence 
 
Jarvis: 173 days in hospital with COVID-19 — 'He's a warrior' 
Windsor Star, Nov. 12, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/on-the-brink-part-1-173-days-in-hospital-with-covid-19-hes-
a-warrior 
 
WRH CEO quarantining after trip to Michigan 
Blackburn News, Nov. 12, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/12/wrh-ceo-quarantining-trip-michigan/ 
 
Long-term care resident and family face concerns as COVID outbreak spikes to 15 cases at Iler Lodge 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 12, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/iler-lodge-ltc-covid-15-cases-1.5800255 
 
Windsor-Essex sees its highest new daily case count in months 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 12, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-new-cases-spike-1.5799140 
 
WECHU reports highest single-day COVID-19 case jump since July 
Windsor Star, Nov. 12, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/wechu-reports-highest-single-day-covid-19-case-jump-since-
july 
 
Migrant advocacy group pushes for immigrant status following tribunal victory, rising COVID-19 cases 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 12, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/migrant-advocacy-group-pushes-for-immigrant-status-following-tribunal-
victory-rising-covid-19-cases-1.5186830 
 
Contract workers from Windsor-Essex brought COVID-19 to Chatham-Kent workplace 
Blackburn News, Nov. 12, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/chatham/chatham-news/2020/11/12/contract-workers-windsor-essex-
brought-covid-19-chatham-kent-workplace1/ 

 

Another Death Linked to COVID-19, 24 New Cases in Windsor-Essex 
AM800, Nov. 17, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/another-death-linked-to-covid-19-24-new-cases-in-
windsor-essex-1.13971941 
 
One new death, 24 new COVID-19 cases reported in Windsor-Essex 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/university-windsor-covid-outbreak-student-1.5798850
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/university-windsor-covid-outbreak-student-1.5798850
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-outbreak-declared-at-uwindsor-residence
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/on-the-brink-part-1-173-days-in-hospital-with-covid-19-hes-a-warrior
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/on-the-brink-part-1-173-days-in-hospital-with-covid-19-hes-a-warrior
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/12/wrh-ceo-quarantining-trip-michigan/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/iler-lodge-ltc-covid-15-cases-1.5800255
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-new-cases-spike-1.5799140
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/wechu-reports-highest-single-day-covid-19-case-jump-since-july
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/wechu-reports-highest-single-day-covid-19-case-jump-since-july
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/migrant-advocacy-group-pushes-for-immigrant-status-following-tribunal-victory-rising-covid-19-cases-1.5186830
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/migrant-advocacy-group-pushes-for-immigrant-status-following-tribunal-victory-rising-covid-19-cases-1.5186830
https://blackburnnews.com/chatham/chatham-news/2020/11/12/contract-workers-windsor-essex-brought-covid-19-chatham-kent-workplace1/
https://blackburnnews.com/chatham/chatham-news/2020/11/12/contract-workers-windsor-essex-brought-covid-19-chatham-kent-workplace1/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/another-death-linked-to-covid-19-24-new-cases-in-windsor-essex-1.13971941
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/another-death-linked-to-covid-19-24-new-cases-in-windsor-essex-1.13971941


CTV Windsor, Nov. 17, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/one-new-death-24-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-
1.5192239 
 
Nine people in hospital due to COVID-19 
Blackburn News, Nov. 16, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/16/nine-people-hospital-due-
covid-19/ 
 
HDGH Suspending Visitors 
AM800, Nov. 16, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hdgh-suspending-visitors-1.13967822 
 
Nine People with COVID-19 in Hospital; Two in ICU 
AM800, Nov. 17, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/nine-people-with-covid-19-in-hospital-two-in-icu-
1.13965450 
 
Windsor nurses voice concerns at provincial nursing association meeting 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 16, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/rnao-nurses-issues-meeting-1.5804588 
 
Windsor-Essex sees spike in COVID-19 hospitalizations 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 16, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-case-rate-hospitalization-1.5803409 
 
35 Recommendation Action Plan for Agri-Farm Sector 
AM800, Nov. 16, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/35-recommendation-action-plan-for-agri-farm-
sector-1.13966975 
 
Erie Shores Healthcare recognized for low cancer surgery wait times 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 16, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/erie-shores-healthcare-recognized-for-low-cancer-surgery-wait-
times-1.5191689 
 
Hôtel-Dieu Grace temporarily suspends visitors as COVID cases rise in region 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 16, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/hdg-visitors-suspended-covid-19-1.5803959 
 
Hotel-Dieu Grace Healthcare temporarily suspending visitors 
Windsor Star, Nov. 16, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-temporarily-
suspending-visitors 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/one-new-death-24-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5192239
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/one-new-death-24-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5192239
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/16/nine-people-hospital-due-covid-19/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/16/nine-people-hospital-due-covid-19/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hdgh-suspending-visitors-1.13967822
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/nine-people-with-covid-19-in-hospital-two-in-icu-1.13965450
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/nine-people-with-covid-19-in-hospital-two-in-icu-1.13965450
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/rnao-nurses-issues-meeting-1.5804588
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-case-rate-hospitalization-1.5803409
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/35-recommendation-action-plan-for-agri-farm-sector-1.13966975
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/35-recommendation-action-plan-for-agri-farm-sector-1.13966975
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/erie-shores-healthcare-recognized-for-low-cancer-surgery-wait-times-1.5191689
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/erie-shores-healthcare-recognized-for-low-cancer-surgery-wait-times-1.5191689
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/hdg-visitors-suspended-covid-19-1.5803959
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-temporarily-suspending-visitors
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-temporarily-suspending-visitors


 
Health unit reports growing COVID-19 hospitalizations, 11 new cases as region moves to 
yellow zone 
Windsor Star, Nov. 16, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-reports-growing-covid-19-
hospitalizations-11-new-cases-as-region-moves-to-yellow-zone 
 
Slight drop in new COVID-19 cases, but increase in hospitalizations in Windsor-Essex 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 16, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/slight-drop-in-new-covid-19-cases-but-increase-in-hospitalizations-
in-windsor-essex-1.5190596 
 
 

Long-term care resident dies, 24 new COVID-19 cases reported in Windsor-Essex 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 17, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/long-term-care-resident-dies-24-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-
essex-1.5192239 

 

Windsor-Essex reports 77th COVID-19 death, dozens more cases 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 17, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid-19-death-1.5804800 

 

WECHU reports first COVID-19 death since September, 24 new cases 

Windsor Star, Nov. 17, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/wechu-reports-first-covid-19-death-since-september-24-
new-cases 

 

UPDATE: Another Death Linked to COVID-19, 24 New Cases in Windsor-Essex 
AM800, Nov. 17, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/update-another-death-linked-to-covid-19-24-new-cases-in-
windsor-essex-1.13971941 

 

WECHU reports first COVID-19 death since September 

Blackburn News, Nov. 17, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/17/wechu-reports-first-covid-19-death-
since-september/ 

 

Entire school in Windsor dismissed after COVID-19 outbreak declared 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 17, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-school-outbreak-closure-1.5806003 

 

Windsor elementary school to close after outbreak declared 

Blackburn News, Nov. 17, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/17/outbreak-declared-windsor-
elementary-school/ 

 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-reports-growing-covid-19-hospitalizations-11-new-cases-as-region-moves-to-yellow-zone
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/health-unit-reports-growing-covid-19-hospitalizations-11-new-cases-as-region-moves-to-yellow-zone
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/slight-drop-in-new-covid-19-cases-but-increase-in-hospitalizations-in-windsor-essex-1.5190596
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/slight-drop-in-new-covid-19-cases-but-increase-in-hospitalizations-in-windsor-essex-1.5190596
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/long-term-care-resident-dies-24-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5192239
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/long-term-care-resident-dies-24-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5192239
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid-19-death-1.5804800
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/wechu-reports-first-covid-19-death-since-september-24-new-cases
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/wechu-reports-first-covid-19-death-since-september-24-new-cases
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/update-another-death-linked-to-covid-19-24-new-cases-in-windsor-essex-1.13971941
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/update-another-death-linked-to-covid-19-24-new-cases-in-windsor-essex-1.13971941
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/17/wechu-reports-first-covid-19-death-since-september/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/17/wechu-reports-first-covid-19-death-since-september/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-school-outbreak-closure-1.5806003
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/17/outbreak-declared-windsor-elementary-school/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/17/outbreak-declared-windsor-elementary-school/


WECHU declares COVID-19 outbreak at Frank W. Begley Elementary School 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 17, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-declares-covid-19-outbreak-at-frank-w-begley-elementary-school-
1.5193443 

 

Hotel-Dieu Grace Healthcare launches Tree of Lights Campaign, receives $10,000 donation 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 17, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-launches-tree-of-lights-campaign-receives-10-
000-donation-1.5193386 

 

HDGH Tree of Lights Campaign Launched 
AM800, Nov. 17, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hdgh-tree-of-lights-campaign-launched-1.13973801 

 

Rise in Windsor-Essex COVID-19 hospitalizations and ICU admissions a 'danger sign' 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 18, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid-19-hospitalization-cases-

1.5806353 

 

WECHU piecing together Begley School COVID-19 outbreak 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 18, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-piecing-together-begley-school-covid-19-outbreak-after-3-

staff-members-test-positive-1.5194135 

Video: https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/video?clipId=2079867 

 

COVID-19 test recommended for Begley public school staff and students 

AM800, Nov. 18, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-test-recommended-for-begley-public-school-

staff-and-students-1.13979528 

 

Windsor patients taking part in COVID-19 treatment trials 

AM800, Nov. 18, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-patients-taking-part-in-covid-19-treatment-

trials-1.13985339 

 

Public health enforcement measures stepped throughout region 

Blackburn News, Nov. 19, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/19/public-health-enforcement-

measures-stepped-throughout-region/ 

 

Area mayors pledge to step up COVID-19 enforcement 

AM800, Nov. 18, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/area-mayors-pledge-to-step-up-covid-19-enforcement-

1.13982847 

 

It’s time for enforcement of COVID-19 rules warn Windsor-Essex mayors 

Windsor Star, Nov. 18, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-declares-covid-19-outbreak-at-frank-w-begley-elementary-school-1.5193443
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-declares-covid-19-outbreak-at-frank-w-begley-elementary-school-1.5193443
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-launches-tree-of-lights-campaign-receives-10-000-donation-1.5193386
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-launches-tree-of-lights-campaign-receives-10-000-donation-1.5193386
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hdgh-tree-of-lights-campaign-launched-1.13973801
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid-19-hospitalization-cases-1.5806353
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid-19-hospitalization-cases-1.5806353
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-piecing-together-begley-school-covid-19-outbreak-after-3-staff-members-test-positive-1.5194135
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-piecing-together-begley-school-covid-19-outbreak-after-3-staff-members-test-positive-1.5194135
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/video?clipId=2079867
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-test-recommended-for-begley-public-school-staff-and-students-1.13979528
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-test-recommended-for-begley-public-school-staff-and-students-1.13979528
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-patients-taking-part-in-covid-19-treatment-trials-1.13985339
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-patients-taking-part-in-covid-19-treatment-trials-1.13985339
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/19/public-health-enforcement-measures-stepped-throughout-region/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/19/public-health-enforcement-measures-stepped-throughout-region/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/area-mayors-pledge-to-step-up-covid-19-enforcement-1.13982847
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/area-mayors-pledge-to-step-up-covid-19-enforcement-1.13982847


https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/its-time-for-enforcement-of-covid-19-rules-warn-

windsor-essex-mayors 

 

Jarvis: Opioid deaths spike in shadow of COVID-19 

Windsor Star, Nov. 18, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-opioid-deaths-spike-in-shadow-of-covid-19 

 

 
Begley has largest COVID outbreak in Ontario with 26 confirmed cases 
Windsor Star, Nov. 22, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/begley-has-largest-covid-outbreak-in-ontario-with-
26-confirmed-cases 
 
 
ESHC implements new directives as region moves into orange level of COVID-19 restrictions 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 22, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/erie-shores-healthcare-implements-new-directives-as-region-
moves-into-orange-level-of-covid-19-restrictions-1.5199984 
 
Tighter COVID-19 restrictions prompt changes at ESHC 
Blackburn News, Nov. 22, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/22/tighter-covid-19-restrictions-
prompt-changes-erie-shores-healthcare/ 
 
COVID-19 bylaw enforcement blitz announced for Windsor 
Windsor Star, Nov. 21, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-bylaw-enforcement-blitz-announced-for-
windsor 
 
As Windsor-Essex prepares for orange zone, local businesses faced with tough decisions 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 22, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/as-windsor-essex-prepares-for-orange-zone-local-businesses-
faced-with-tough-decisions-1.5200056 
 
Region faces new restrictions as Windsor-Essex moves into province's orange COVID-19 
category 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 22, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/region-faces-windsor-orange-restrictions-school-
1.5810518 
 
 
Windsor-Essex officials highlight mental health resources as COVID measures tighten 
AM800, Nov. 20, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/its-time-for-enforcement-of-covid-19-rules-warn-windsor-essex-mayors
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/its-time-for-enforcement-of-covid-19-rules-warn-windsor-essex-mayors
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-opioid-deaths-spike-in-shadow-of-covid-19
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/begley-has-largest-covid-outbreak-in-ontario-with-26-confirmed-cases
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/begley-has-largest-covid-outbreak-in-ontario-with-26-confirmed-cases
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/erie-shores-healthcare-implements-new-directives-as-region-moves-into-orange-level-of-covid-19-restrictions-1.5199984
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/erie-shores-healthcare-implements-new-directives-as-region-moves-into-orange-level-of-covid-19-restrictions-1.5199984
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/22/tighter-covid-19-restrictions-prompt-changes-erie-shores-healthcare/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/22/tighter-covid-19-restrictions-prompt-changes-erie-shores-healthcare/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-bylaw-enforcement-blitz-announced-for-windsor
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-bylaw-enforcement-blitz-announced-for-windsor
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/as-windsor-essex-prepares-for-orange-zone-local-businesses-faced-with-tough-decisions-1.5200056
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/as-windsor-essex-prepares-for-orange-zone-local-businesses-faced-with-tough-decisions-1.5200056
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/region-faces-windsor-orange-restrictions-school-1.5810518
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/region-faces-windsor-orange-restrictions-school-1.5810518


https://www.iheartradio.ca/virginradio/windsor-essex-officials-highlight-mental-health-
resources-as-covid-measures-tighten-1.14007930 
 
Mental health advocates urging self care as winter approaches 
Windsor Star, Nov. 20, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/mental-health-advocates-urging-self-care-as-winter-
approaches 
 
Chatham-Kent sees its first COVID-19 school outbreak 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 23, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/chatham-kent-school-outbreak-covid-19-1.5812292 
 
 

 

Second COVID-19 wave becoming more dangerous than first in Windsor-Essex, top doc 

says 

Windsor Star, Nov. 23, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/second-covid-19-wave-becoming-more-dangerous-

than-first-in-windsor-essex-top-doc-says 

 

Second wave outpacing first Windsor-Essex 

Blackburn News, Nov. 23, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/23/second-wave-outpacing-first-

windsor-essex/ 

 

UWindsor study reveals toll of COVID-19 on Ontario health-care workers 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 23, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/study-covid-toll-health-care-workers-1.5813647 

 

Windsor mayor breaks COVID restrictions at restaurant, just hours after urging zero 

tolerance 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 23, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-mayor-dining-covid-1.5812980 

 

Mayor admits to breaking COVID rules at dinner; will donate to charity 

Windsor Star, Nov. 23, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/mayor-admits-to-breaking-covid-rules-at-dinner-will-

donate-to-charity 

 

Just Under 300 Begley Elementary School Students Tested for COVID-19 

AM800, Nov. 23, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/just-under-300-begley-elementary-school-students-

tested-for-covid-19-1.14013588 

 

Windsor-Essex has the province's largest COVID-19 school outbreak with 39 cases 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 23, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/virginradio/windsor-essex-officials-highlight-mental-health-resources-as-covid-measures-tighten-1.14007930
https://www.iheartradio.ca/virginradio/windsor-essex-officials-highlight-mental-health-resources-as-covid-measures-tighten-1.14007930
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/mental-health-advocates-urging-self-care-as-winter-approaches
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/mental-health-advocates-urging-self-care-as-winter-approaches
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/chatham-kent-school-outbreak-covid-19-1.5812292
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/second-covid-19-wave-becoming-more-dangerous-than-first-in-windsor-essex-top-doc-says
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/second-covid-19-wave-becoming-more-dangerous-than-first-in-windsor-essex-top-doc-says
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/23/second-wave-outpacing-first-windsor-essex/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/23/second-wave-outpacing-first-windsor-essex/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/study-covid-toll-health-care-workers-1.5813647
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-mayor-dining-covid-1.5812980
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/mayor-admits-to-breaking-covid-rules-at-dinner-will-donate-to-charity
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/mayor-admits-to-breaking-covid-rules-at-dinner-will-donate-to-charity
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/just-under-300-begley-elementary-school-students-tested-for-covid-19-1.14013588
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/just-under-300-begley-elementary-school-students-tested-for-covid-19-1.14013588


https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-windsor-essex-1.5812308 

 

Begley has largest COVID outbreak in Ontario with 26 confirmed cases 

Windsor Star, Nov. 23, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/begley-has-largest-covid-outbreak-in-ontario-with-26-

confirmed-cases 

 

Windsor’s Frank W Begley Public School reporting 37 confirmed COVID-19 cases 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 23, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-s-frank-w-begley-public-school-reporting-37-confirmed-

covid-19-cases-1.5200385 

 

High Risk COVID-19 Cases Identified at Public School Board 

AM800, Nov. 23, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/high-risk-covid-19-cases-identified-at-public-school-

board-1.14017489 

 

Self-testing for secondary students 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 24, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/video?clipId=2084066 

 

Transition to orange zone causes confusion 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 24, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/mobile/video?binId=1.1143900 

 

Second COVID-19 wave becoming more dangerous than first in Windsor-Essex, top doc 

says 

Windsor Star, Nov. 24, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/second-covid-19-wave-becoming-more-dangerous-

than-first-in-windsor-essex-top-doc-says 

 

Public health warns Windsor-Essex on a 'dangerous trajectory' as COVID-19 outbreaks, 

cases rise 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 24, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid-19-1.5813800 

 

Catholic school board did all they could to prevent outbreak: Dr. Ahmed 

AM800, Nov. 25, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/catholic-school-board-did-all-they-could-to-prevent-

outbreak-dr-ahmed-1.14026806 

 

Gretzky criticizes circumstances around Begley outbreak 

Blackburn News, Nov. 24, 2020  

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/25/gretzky-criticizes-circumstances-

around-begley-outbreak/ 

 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-windsor-essex-1.5812308
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/begley-has-largest-covid-outbreak-in-ontario-with-26-confirmed-cases
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/begley-has-largest-covid-outbreak-in-ontario-with-26-confirmed-cases
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-s-frank-w-begley-public-school-reporting-37-confirmed-covid-19-cases-1.5200385
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-s-frank-w-begley-public-school-reporting-37-confirmed-covid-19-cases-1.5200385
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/high-risk-covid-19-cases-identified-at-public-school-board-1.14017489
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/high-risk-covid-19-cases-identified-at-public-school-board-1.14017489
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/video?clipId=2084066
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/mobile/video?binId=1.1143900
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/second-covid-19-wave-becoming-more-dangerous-than-first-in-windsor-essex-top-doc-says
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/second-covid-19-wave-becoming-more-dangerous-than-first-in-windsor-essex-top-doc-says
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid-19-1.5813800
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/catholic-school-board-did-all-they-could-to-prevent-outbreak-dr-ahmed-1.14026806
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/catholic-school-board-did-all-they-could-to-prevent-outbreak-dr-ahmed-1.14026806
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/25/gretzky-criticizes-circumstances-around-begley-outbreak/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/25/gretzky-criticizes-circumstances-around-begley-outbreak/


COVID has closed 2 Windsor schools: How to talk to your kids about school COVID-19 

cases 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 24, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/talking-kids-covid-cases-1.5813692 

 

More Windsor-Essex schools reporting COVID-19 cases 

Blackburn News, Nov. 24, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/24/more-windsor-essex-schools-

reporting-covid-19-cases/ 

 

 

COVID-19 spike at local long-term care facility 

AM800, Nov. 24, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-spike-at-local-long-term-care-facility-

1.14022895 

 

Bellewood Public School and Massey Secondary report COVID-19 cases 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 24, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/bellewood-public-school-and-massey-secondary-report-covid-19-

cases-1.5202964 

 

RIA Financial added to Windsor-Essex COVID-19 potential exposure list 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 24, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/ria-financial-added-to-windsor-essex-covid-19-potential-exposure-

list-1.5203039 

 

Possible COVID-19 exposure at RIA Financial 

Blackburn News, Nov. 24, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/24/possible-covid-19-exposure-ria-

financial/ 

 

Local anti-COVID-19 rally co-organizer calls Mayor Dilkens a hypocrite 

AM800, Nov. 24, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-anti-covid-19-rally-co-organizer-calls-mayor-

dilkens-a-hypocrite-1.14022756 

 

Windsor, ON mayor making $750 donation after violating COVID-19 dining rules 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 24, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-ont-mayor-making-750-donation-after-violating-covid-19-

dining-rules-1.5202151 

 

Windsor's top doc says everyone needs to take responsibility, as Mayor breaks COVID-19 

rules 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 24, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/mayor-windsor-essex-covid-1.5814204 

 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/talking-kids-covid-cases-1.5813692
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/24/more-windsor-essex-schools-reporting-covid-19-cases/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/24/more-windsor-essex-schools-reporting-covid-19-cases/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-spike-at-local-long-term-care-facility-1.14022895
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-spike-at-local-long-term-care-facility-1.14022895
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/bellewood-public-school-and-massey-secondary-report-covid-19-cases-1.5202964
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/bellewood-public-school-and-massey-secondary-report-covid-19-cases-1.5202964
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/ria-financial-added-to-windsor-essex-covid-19-potential-exposure-list-1.5203039
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/ria-financial-added-to-windsor-essex-covid-19-potential-exposure-list-1.5203039
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/24/possible-covid-19-exposure-ria-financial/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/24/possible-covid-19-exposure-ria-financial/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-anti-covid-19-rally-co-organizer-calls-mayor-dilkens-a-hypocrite-1.14022756
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/local-anti-covid-19-rally-co-organizer-calls-mayor-dilkens-a-hypocrite-1.14022756
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-ont-mayor-making-750-donation-after-violating-covid-19-dining-rules-1.5202151
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-ont-mayor-making-750-donation-after-violating-covid-19-dining-rules-1.5202151
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/mayor-windsor-essex-covid-1.5814204


Dilkens donates to charity after breaking COVID-19 restrictions 

Blackburn News, Nov. 24, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/24/dilkens-donates-charity-breaking-

covid-19-restrictions/ 

 

Windsor moves closer to red zone as new COVID-19 cases increase 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 25, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-moves-closer-to-red-zone-as-new-covid-19-cases-increase-

1.5203740 

 

High COVID-19 rates move Windsor-Essex closer to province's red zone 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 25, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid-19-nov-25-1.5815455 

 

Windsor-Essex heading towards red status 

AM800, Nov. 25, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-heading-towards-red-status-1.14029572 

 

Windsor-Essex surpasses red level thresholds 

Blackburn News, Nov. 25, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/25/windsor-essex-surpasses-red-

level-thresholds/ 

 

Windsor-Essex COVID-19 numbers already in red status says health unit 

Windsor Star, Nov. 25, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-essex-covid-19-numbers-already-in-red-status-

says-health-unit 

 

Religious exemption from masks doesn’t exist advises Windsor-Essex health unit 

Windsor Star, Nov. 25, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/religious-exemption-from-masks-doesnt-exist-advises-

windsor-essex-health-unit 

 

Reader letter: Incredible hospital staff deserve new facilities 

Windsor Star, Nov. 25, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-incredible-hospital-staff-deserve-new-

facilities 

 

Students sent home after COVID-19 confirmed at Catholic school 

Blackburn News, Nov. 25, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/25/students-sent-home-covid-19-

confirmed-windsor-catholic-school/ 

 

Student Cohort Dismissed After COVID-19 Found at Corpus Christi Middle School 

AM800, Nov. 25, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/student-cohort-dismissed-after-covid-19-found-at-corpus-
christi-middle-school-1.14031892 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/24/dilkens-donates-charity-breaking-covid-19-restrictions/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/24/dilkens-donates-charity-breaking-covid-19-restrictions/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-moves-closer-to-red-zone-as-new-covid-19-cases-increase-1.5203740
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-moves-closer-to-red-zone-as-new-covid-19-cases-increase-1.5203740
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid-19-nov-25-1.5815455
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-heading-towards-red-status-1.14029572
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/25/windsor-essex-surpasses-red-level-thresholds/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/25/windsor-essex-surpasses-red-level-thresholds/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-essex-covid-19-numbers-already-in-red-status-says-health-unit
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-essex-covid-19-numbers-already-in-red-status-says-health-unit
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/religious-exemption-from-masks-doesnt-exist-advises-windsor-essex-health-unit
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/religious-exemption-from-masks-doesnt-exist-advises-windsor-essex-health-unit
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-incredible-hospital-staff-deserve-new-facilities
https://windsorstar.com/opinion/letters/reader-letter-incredible-hospital-staff-deserve-new-facilities
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/25/students-sent-home-covid-19-confirmed-windsor-catholic-school/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/25/students-sent-home-covid-19-confirmed-windsor-catholic-school/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/student-cohort-dismissed-after-covid-19-found-at-corpus-christi-middle-school-1.14031892
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/student-cohort-dismissed-after-covid-19-found-at-corpus-christi-middle-school-1.14031892


 

WECDSB confirms COVID-19 case at Windsor middle school, 24 students dismissed 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 25, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wecdsb-confirms-covid-19-case-at-windsor-middle-school-24-

students-dismissed-1.5204858 

 

Three Restaurants Identified as Possible COVID-19 Exposure Points 

AM800, Nov. 25, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/three-restaurants-identified-as-possible-covid-19-exposure-
points-1.14031196 

 

Applebee’s and Tabouli added to Windsor-Essex COVID-19 possible exposure list 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 25, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/applebee-s-and-tabouli-added-to-windsor-essex-covid-19-possible-

exposure-list-1.5204665 

 

COVID-19 exposure alert issued for two local restaurants 

Blackburn News, Nov. 25, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/25/covid-19-exposure-alert-issued-

two-local-restaurants/ 

 

Tecumseh Councillor acclaimed as PC candidate in Windsor-Tecumseh (references new 

hospital project) 

Blackburn News, Nov. 25, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/26/tecumseh-councillor-acclaimed-

pc-candidate-windsor-tecumseh/ 

 

Tecumseh Councillor Andrew Dowie to Run for PCs in Windsor-Tecumseh (references new 

hospital project) 

AM800, Nov. 25, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/tecumseh-councillor-andrew-dowie-to-run-for-pcs-in-
windsor-tecumseh-1.14033523 

 

Chatham-Kent Public Health visual illustrates far-reaching effect of church outbreak 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 25, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/chatham-kent-infographic-outbreak-1.5816949 

 

Windsorites say they intend to follow holiday recommendations 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 25, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsorites-say-they-intend-to-follow-holiday-
recommendations-1.5816796 

 

Access to mental health services top priority in 2020 Vital Signs report 

Windsor Star, Nov. 25, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/vital-signs-report 

 

COVID-19 outbreak declared to seventh floor of WRH’s Ouellette Campus 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wecdsb-confirms-covid-19-case-at-windsor-middle-school-24-students-dismissed-1.5204858
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wecdsb-confirms-covid-19-case-at-windsor-middle-school-24-students-dismissed-1.5204858
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/three-restaurants-identified-as-possible-covid-19-exposure-points-1.14031196
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/three-restaurants-identified-as-possible-covid-19-exposure-points-1.14031196
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/applebee-s-and-tabouli-added-to-windsor-essex-covid-19-possible-exposure-list-1.5204665
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/applebee-s-and-tabouli-added-to-windsor-essex-covid-19-possible-exposure-list-1.5204665
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/25/covid-19-exposure-alert-issued-two-local-restaurants/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/25/covid-19-exposure-alert-issued-two-local-restaurants/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/26/tecumseh-councillor-acclaimed-pc-candidate-windsor-tecumseh/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/26/tecumseh-councillor-acclaimed-pc-candidate-windsor-tecumseh/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/tecumseh-councillor-andrew-dowie-to-run-for-pcs-in-windsor-tecumseh-1.14033523
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/tecumseh-councillor-andrew-dowie-to-run-for-pcs-in-windsor-tecumseh-1.14033523
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/chatham-kent-infographic-outbreak-1.5816949
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsorites-say-they-intend-to-follow-holiday-recommendations-1.5816796
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsorites-say-they-intend-to-follow-holiday-recommendations-1.5816796
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/vital-signs-report


CTV Windsor, Nov. 30, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/covid-19-outbreak-declared-for-seventh-floor-of-wrh-s-ouellette-
campus-1.5210022 
 
WRH responds to 7th floor COVID-19 outbreak at Ouellette Campus 
Windsor Star, Nov. 30, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-regional-responds-to-7th-floor-covid-19-
outbreak-at-ouellette-campus 
 
Windsor Regional declares outbreak at Ouellette Campus 
Blackburn News, Nov. 30, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/30/windsor-regional-declares-
outbreak-ouellette-campus/ 
 
Region sees new cases of COVID-19 Sunday; outbreak declared at HDGH 
AM800, Nov. 29, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/region-sees-26-new-cases-of-covid-19-sunday-
outbreak-declared-at-hdgh-1.14055561 
 
Hotel-Dieu Grace Healthcare declares COVID-19 outbreak 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 29, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-declares-covid-19-outbreak-
1.5209463 
 
Outbreak declared at Hôtel-Dieu Grace's rehab unit 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 29, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/outbreak-hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-cluster-
1.5821256 
 
WECHU investigating clusters of COVID-19 cases at hospitals 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 29, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/wechu-investigating-clusters-of-covid-19-cases-at-
hospitals-1.5819631 
 
WECHU investigating COVID-19 clusters at two hospitals 
Blackburn News, Nov. 27, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/27/wechu-investigating-covid-19-
clusters-two-hospitals/ 
 
COVID-19 clusters identified at Windsor Regional, Hotel-Dieu Grace hospitals 
Windsor Star, Nov. 27, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-clusters-identified-at-windsor-regional-
hotel-dieu-grace-hospitals 
 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/covid-19-outbreak-declared-for-seventh-floor-of-wrh-s-ouellette-campus-1.5210022
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/covid-19-outbreak-declared-for-seventh-floor-of-wrh-s-ouellette-campus-1.5210022
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-regional-responds-to-7th-floor-covid-19-outbreak-at-ouellette-campus
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-regional-responds-to-7th-floor-covid-19-outbreak-at-ouellette-campus
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/30/windsor-regional-declares-outbreak-ouellette-campus/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/30/windsor-regional-declares-outbreak-ouellette-campus/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/region-sees-26-new-cases-of-covid-19-sunday-outbreak-declared-at-hdgh-1.14055561
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/region-sees-26-new-cases-of-covid-19-sunday-outbreak-declared-at-hdgh-1.14055561
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-declares-covid-19-outbreak-1.5209463
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-declares-covid-19-outbreak-1.5209463
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/outbreak-hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-cluster-1.5821256
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/outbreak-hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-cluster-1.5821256
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/wechu-investigating-clusters-of-covid-19-cases-at-hospitals-1.5819631
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/wechu-investigating-clusters-of-covid-19-cases-at-hospitals-1.5819631
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/27/wechu-investigating-covid-19-clusters-two-hospitals/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/27/wechu-investigating-covid-19-clusters-two-hospitals/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-clusters-identified-at-windsor-regional-hotel-dieu-grace-hospitals
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/covid-19-clusters-identified-at-windsor-regional-hotel-dieu-grace-hospitals


Cluster of COVID-19 cases at two Windsor hospitals 
AM800, Nov. 27, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/cluster-of-covid-19-cases-at-two-windsor-hospitals-
1.14042987 
 
Our Lady of Mount Carmel and St. Joseph elementary schools dismiss three cohorts 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 30, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/our-lady-of-mount-carmel-and-st-joseph-elementary-schools-
dismiss-three-cohorts-1.5209848 
 
3 cohorts at 2 Windsor-Essex elementary schools dismissed over COVID-19 cases 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 30, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-windsor-essex-schools-1.5821624 
 
Cohorts dismissed at Catholic elementary schools 
AM800, Nov. 29, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/cohorts-dismissed-at-catholic-elementary-schools-
due-to-covd-19-1.14057713 
 
Catholic schools in Windsor dismiss three cohorts due to COVID-19 
Blackburn News, Nov. 29, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/29/catholic-schools-windsor-
dismiss-three-cohorts-due-covid-19/ 
 
'Calm in a very stressful situation': Principal on how W.J. Langlois managed its COVID-19 
shutdown 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 27, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-school-covid-shutdown-1.5819290 
 
Three businesses possibly exposed to COVID-19 
Blackburn News, Nov. 27, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/27/three-businesses-possibly-
exposed-covid-19/ 
 
Several businesses added to WECHU’s possible COVID-19 exposure list 
AM800, Nov. 27, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/several-businesses-added-to-wechu-s-possible-covid-
19-exposure-list-1.14043158 
 
‘It doesn’t look good’ – Windsor-Essex moves to red status as health unit reports 51 new 
COVID-19 cases 
Windsor Star, Nov. 27, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/it-doesnt-look-good-windsor-essex-moves-to-red-
status-as-health-unit-reports-51-new-covid-19-cases 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/cluster-of-covid-19-cases-at-two-windsor-hospitals-1.14042987
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/cluster-of-covid-19-cases-at-two-windsor-hospitals-1.14042987
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/our-lady-of-mount-carmel-and-st-joseph-elementary-schools-dismiss-three-cohorts-1.5209848
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/our-lady-of-mount-carmel-and-st-joseph-elementary-schools-dismiss-three-cohorts-1.5209848
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-windsor-essex-schools-1.5821624
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/cohorts-dismissed-at-catholic-elementary-schools-due-to-covd-19-1.14057713
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/cohorts-dismissed-at-catholic-elementary-schools-due-to-covd-19-1.14057713
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/29/catholic-schools-windsor-dismiss-three-cohorts-due-covid-19/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/29/catholic-schools-windsor-dismiss-three-cohorts-due-covid-19/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-school-covid-shutdown-1.5819290
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/27/three-businesses-possibly-exposed-covid-19/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/27/three-businesses-possibly-exposed-covid-19/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/several-businesses-added-to-wechu-s-possible-covid-19-exposure-list-1.14043158
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/several-businesses-added-to-wechu-s-possible-covid-19-exposure-list-1.14043158
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/it-doesnt-look-good-windsor-essex-moves-to-red-status-as-health-unit-reports-51-new-covid-19-cases
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/it-doesnt-look-good-windsor-essex-moves-to-red-status-as-health-unit-reports-51-new-covid-19-cases


 
Top doc rescinds masking order in favour of stricter provincial mask rules 
Windsor Star, Nov. 27, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/top-doc-rescinds-masking-order-in-favour-of-
stricter-provincial-mask-rules 
 
Windsor-Essex health unit asks for more support as COVID-19 cases rise 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 27, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid-19-cases-1.5819096 
 
Health unit reports 26 new COVID-19 cases in Windsor-Essex 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 29, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/health-unit-reports-26-new-covid-19-cases-in-windsor-essex-
1.5209245 
 
26 new COVID-19 cases in region; outbreak declared at HDGH 
Blackburn News, Nov. 29, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/29/26-new-covid-19-cases-
region-outbreak-declared-hotel-dieu-grace/ 
 
Windsor-Essex COVID-19 counts spike by 63 new cases, one death 
Windsor Star, Nov. 28, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-essex-covid-19-counts-spike-by-63-new-
cases-one-new-death 
 
Health unit reports 63 new cases of COVID-19 and one additional death Saturday 
AM800, Nov. 28, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-reports-63-new-cases-of-covid-19-and-
one-additional-death-saturday-1.14047634 
 
Another death, 63 new cases of COVID-19 in Windsor-Essex 
Blackburn News, Nov. 28, 2020 
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/28/another-death-63-new-cases-
covid-19-windsor-essex/ 
 
Windsor-Essex moving to 'red' category of COVID-19 restrictions 
CBC Windsor, Nov. 27, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-red-covid19-1.5819398 
 
Windsor-Essex moving to red control level 
AM800, Nov. 27, 2020 
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-moving-to-red-control-level-
1.14042684 
 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/top-doc-rescinds-masking-order-in-favour-of-stricter-provincial-mask-rules
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/top-doc-rescinds-masking-order-in-favour-of-stricter-provincial-mask-rules
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-covid-19-cases-1.5819096
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/health-unit-reports-26-new-covid-19-cases-in-windsor-essex-1.5209245
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/health-unit-reports-26-new-covid-19-cases-in-windsor-essex-1.5209245
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/29/26-new-covid-19-cases-region-outbreak-declared-hotel-dieu-grace/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/29/26-new-covid-19-cases-region-outbreak-declared-hotel-dieu-grace/
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-essex-covid-19-counts-spike-by-63-new-cases-one-new-death
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-essex-covid-19-counts-spike-by-63-new-cases-one-new-death
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-reports-63-new-cases-of-covid-19-and-one-additional-death-saturday-1.14047634
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-reports-63-new-cases-of-covid-19-and-one-additional-death-saturday-1.14047634
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/28/another-death-63-new-cases-covid-19-windsor-essex/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/28/another-death-63-new-cases-covid-19-windsor-essex/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-essex-red-covid19-1.5819398
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-moving-to-red-control-level-1.14042684
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/windsor-essex-moving-to-red-control-level-1.14042684


Windsor-Essex moving to red zone of provincial COVID-19 shutdown framework 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 27, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-essex-moving-to-red-zone-of-provincial-covid-19-
shutdown-framework-1.5207025 
 
About 50 people came to protest COVID-19 restrictions 
CTV Windsor, Nov. 29, 2020 
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/about-50-people-came-to-protest-covid-19-restrictions-1.5209447 
 
Windsor police likely to expand use of naloxone before end of 2020 
Windsor Star, Nov. 27, 2020 
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-police-likely-to-expand-use-of-naloxone-
before-end-of-2020 
 
 

Two local hospitals experiencing COVID-19 outbreak 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 30, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/video?clipId=2089026 

 

Health unit warns of limiting close contacts 

AM800, Nov. 30, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-warns-of-limiting-close-contacts-

1.14061017 

 

WECHU urges residents to reduce close contacts as new COVID-19 cases rise 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 30, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-urges-residents-to-reduce-close-contacts-as-new-covid-19-

cases-rise-1.5210030 

 

Mobile health teams mobilized at ESHC 

Blackburn News, Nov. 30, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/30/mobile-health-teams-mobilized-

eshc/ 

 

Public health wants you to make a COVID isolation plan: Here's how you do that 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 30, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/isolation-plan-covid-19-1.5822004 

 

Jarvis: It’s about health, period 

Windsor Star, Nov. 30, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-its-about-health-period 

 

City of Windsor COVID-19 enforcement blitz results in nearly 2 dozen charges 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 30, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-enforcement-blitz-numbers-1.5822083 

 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-essex-moving-to-red-zone-of-provincial-covid-19-shutdown-framework-1.5207025
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-essex-moving-to-red-zone-of-provincial-covid-19-shutdown-framework-1.5207025
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/about-50-people-came-to-protest-covid-19-restrictions-1.5209447
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-police-likely-to-expand-use-of-naloxone-before-end-of-2020
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/windsor-police-likely-to-expand-use-of-naloxone-before-end-of-2020
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/video?clipId=2089026
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-warns-of-limiting-close-contacts-1.14061017
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-warns-of-limiting-close-contacts-1.14061017
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-urges-residents-to-reduce-close-contacts-as-new-covid-19-cases-rise-1.5210030
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-urges-residents-to-reduce-close-contacts-as-new-covid-19-cases-rise-1.5210030
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/30/mobile-health-teams-mobilized-eshc/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/30/mobile-health-teams-mobilized-eshc/
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/isolation-plan-covid-19-1.5822004
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/jarvis-its-about-health-period
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/windsor-enforcement-blitz-numbers-1.5822083


23 charges laid by bylaw officers enforcing COVID measures 

Windsor Star, Nov. 30, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/23-charges-laid-by-bylaw-officers-enforcing-covid-

measures 

 

Work under way to bring Begley students back after COVID closure 

AM800, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/work-underway-to-bring-begley-students-back-after-

covid-19-closure-1.14066456 

 

Windsor-Essex businesses continue to roll with the punches as region turns red\ 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 30, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-essex-businesses-continue-to-roll-with-the-punches-as-

region-turns-red-1.5210897 

 

Five new COVID-19 cases at public school board 

AM800, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/five-new-covid-19-cases-at-public-school-board-

1.14066134 

 

Two confirmed COVID-19 cases at St. William 

Blackburn News, Nov. 30, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/30/two-confirmed-covid-19-cases-st-

william/ 

 

More students dismissed at St. William Catholic School due to COVID-19 

AM800, Nov. 30, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/more-students-dismissed-at-st-william-catholic-school-

due-to-covid-19-1.14063848 

 

52 students dismissed from St. William Catholic elementary school in Emeryville 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 30, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/52-students-dismissed-from-st-william-catholic-elementary-school-

in-emeryville-1.5211013 

 

WECHU confirms COVID-19 case at University of Windsor campus 

CTV Windsor, Nov. 30, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-confirms-covid-19-case-at-university-of-windsor-campus-

1.5210641 

 

On-campus COVID-19 case confirmed at University of Windsor 

CBC Windsor, Nov. 30, 2020 
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-case-university-of-windsor-nov-30-1.5822328 

 

UofW reports third COVID-19 case in a week 

Blackburn News, Nov. 30, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/23-charges-laid-by-bylaw-officers-enforcing-covid-measures
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/23-charges-laid-by-bylaw-officers-enforcing-covid-measures
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/work-underway-to-bring-begley-students-back-after-covid-19-closure-1.14066456
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/work-underway-to-bring-begley-students-back-after-covid-19-closure-1.14066456
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-essex-businesses-continue-to-roll-with-the-punches-as-region-turns-red-1.5210897
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-essex-businesses-continue-to-roll-with-the-punches-as-region-turns-red-1.5210897
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/five-new-covid-19-cases-at-public-school-board-1.14066134
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/five-new-covid-19-cases-at-public-school-board-1.14066134
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/30/two-confirmed-covid-19-cases-st-william/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/30/two-confirmed-covid-19-cases-st-william/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/more-students-dismissed-at-st-william-catholic-school-due-to-covid-19-1.14063848
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/more-students-dismissed-at-st-william-catholic-school-due-to-covid-19-1.14063848
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/52-students-dismissed-from-st-william-catholic-elementary-school-in-emeryville-1.5211013
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/52-students-dismissed-from-st-william-catholic-elementary-school-in-emeryville-1.5211013
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-confirms-covid-19-case-at-university-of-windsor-campus-1.5210641
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/wechu-confirms-covid-19-case-at-university-of-windsor-campus-1.5210641
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-case-university-of-windsor-nov-30-1.5822328


https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/30/u-w-reports-third-covid-19-case-

week/ 

 

COVID-19 case confirmed Tecumseh daycare 

Blackburn News, Nov. 30, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/30/covid-19-case-confirmed-

tecumseh-daycare/ 

 

Windsor-Essex hospitals return no visitor policies 

Blackburn News, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/12/01/windsor-essex-hospitals-return-

no-visitor-policies/ 

 

Hospitals re-institute no visitor policy 

Windsor Star, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/hospitals-re-institute-no-visitor-policy 

 

Update: WRH restricts visitors due to COVID-19 

AM800, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/update-windsor-regional-hospital-restricts-visitors-due-

to-covid-19-1.14070541 

 

HDGH tightens visitor restrictions as COVID-19 cases rise 

AM800, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hdgh-tightens-visitor-restrictions-as-covid-19-cases-

rise-1.14070184 

 

HDGH managing COVID-19 outbreak at facility 

AM800, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hdgh-managing-covid-19-outbreak-at-facility-

1.14069259 

 

Kaffer: HDGH outbreak control continues, staff very tired 

Windsor Star, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/kaffer-hdgh-outbreak-control-continues-staff-very-tired 

 

Three additional COVID-19 cases associated with HDGH outbreak 

CTV Windsor, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/three-additional-covid-19-cases-associated-with-hotel-dieu-grace-

healthcare-outbreak-1.5212810 

 

Strained WECHU monitoring more than 1400 cases, close contacts 

Windsor Star, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/strained-wechu-monitoring-more-than-1400-cases-

close-contacts 

 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/30/u-w-reports-third-covid-19-case-week/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/30/u-w-reports-third-covid-19-case-week/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/30/covid-19-case-confirmed-tecumseh-daycare/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/11/30/covid-19-case-confirmed-tecumseh-daycare/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/12/01/windsor-essex-hospitals-return-no-visitor-policies/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/12/01/windsor-essex-hospitals-return-no-visitor-policies/
https://windsorstar.com/news/hospitals-re-institute-no-visitor-policy
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/update-windsor-regional-hospital-restricts-visitors-due-to-covid-19-1.14070541
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/update-windsor-regional-hospital-restricts-visitors-due-to-covid-19-1.14070541
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hdgh-tightens-visitor-restrictions-as-covid-19-cases-rise-1.14070184
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hdgh-tightens-visitor-restrictions-as-covid-19-cases-rise-1.14070184
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hdgh-managing-covid-19-outbreak-at-facility-1.14069259
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/hdgh-managing-covid-19-outbreak-at-facility-1.14069259
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/kaffer-hdgh-outbreak-control-continues-staff-very-tired
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/three-additional-covid-19-cases-associated-with-hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-outbreak-1.5212810
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/three-additional-covid-19-cases-associated-with-hotel-dieu-grace-healthcare-outbreak-1.5212810
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/strained-wechu-monitoring-more-than-1400-cases-close-contacts
https://windsorstar.com/news/local-news/strained-wechu-monitoring-more-than-1400-cases-close-contacts


Health unit resources stretched 

AM800, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-resources-

stretched-1.14069282 

 

Medical officer of health warns risk of lockdowns 

AM800, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/medical-officer-of-health-warns-risk-of-lockdown-

1.14067486 

 

Risk of lockdown looms for Windsor-Essex 

Media Report  

 to the Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

Date:  December Report 
 

       

 

Blackburn News, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/12/01/risk-lockdown-looms-windsor-

essex/ 

 

Windsor-Essex facing risk of going into a lockdown warns top doctor 

CTV Windsor, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-essex-facing-risk-of-going-into-a-lockdown-warns-top-

doctor-1.5212081 

 

Windsor-Essex public health warns its on the verge of collapse as COVID-19 burden 

worsens 

CBC Windsor, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-windsor-essex-dec-1-1.5823160 

 

Pharmacist says increased demand for flu vaccine 'astronomical' 

CBC Windsor, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/pharmacity-flu-vaccine-increase-demand-1.5824644 

 

Son of Windsor pediatrician hopes to promote father's legacy with documentary 

CBC Windsor, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/joseph-galiwango-father-pediatrician-documentary-

1.5824567 

 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-resources-stretched-1.14069282
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/health-unit-resources-stretched-1.14069282
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/medical-officer-of-health-warns-risk-of-lockdown-1.14067486
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/medical-officer-of-health-warns-risk-of-lockdown-1.14067486
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/12/01/risk-lockdown-looms-windsor-essex/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/12/01/risk-lockdown-looms-windsor-essex/
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-essex-facing-risk-of-going-into-a-lockdown-warns-top-doctor-1.5212081
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/windsor-essex-facing-risk-of-going-into-a-lockdown-warns-top-doctor-1.5212081
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-windsor-essex-dec-1-1.5823160
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/pharmacity-flu-vaccine-increase-demand-1.5824644
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/joseph-galiwango-father-pediatrician-documentary-1.5824567
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/joseph-galiwango-father-pediatrician-documentary-1.5824567


 

Two weeks on from outbreak, Frank W. Begley reopening remains uncertain 

CBC Windsor, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/begley-reopening-uncertain-1.5824226 

 

Outbreak declared at Chatham-Kent LTC home after staff member tests positive for 

COVID-19 

CTV Windsor, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/outbreak-declared-at-chatham-kent-ltc-home-after-staff-member-

tests-positive-for-covid-19-1.5212572 

 

One new death, 62 new COVID-19 cases 

AM800, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/one-new-death-62-new-covid-19-cases-1.14066892 

 

One new death, 62 new COVID-19 cases reported in Windsor-Essex 

CTV Windsor, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/one-new-death-62-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-

1.5211673 

 

'High-risk' COVID-19 exposure case reported at Windsor public school 

CBC Windsor, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-public-school-1.5824722 

 

COVID-19 case confirmed at Windsor’s Northwood School 

Blackburn News, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/12/01/covid-19-case-confirmed-

windsors-northwood-school/ 

 

COVID-19 case reported at Northwood Public School 

AM800, Dec. 1, 2020 

https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-case-reported-at-northwood-public-school-in-

windsor-1.14072972 

 
 

 

 
 

Users:  

56,000 users this month, same as last month 

New Users: 71% 

Average view time: 1 m 47 s 

 

How do people access the site?  
Mobile: 53.3%, same as last month 

Desktop:  43.2%, up .6 % 

Tablet:  3.8 %, down 1.6%  

https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/begley-reopening-uncertain-1.5824226
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/outbreak-declared-at-chatham-kent-ltc-home-after-staff-member-tests-positive-for-covid-19-1.5212572
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/outbreak-declared-at-chatham-kent-ltc-home-after-staff-member-tests-positive-for-covid-19-1.5212572
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/one-new-death-62-new-covid-19-cases-1.14066892
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/one-new-death-62-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5211673
https://windsor.ctvnews.ca/one-new-death-62-new-covid-19-cases-reported-in-windsor-essex-1.5211673
https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/windsor/covid-19-public-school-1.5824722
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/12/01/covid-19-case-confirmed-windsors-northwood-school/
https://blackburnnews.com/windsor/windsor-news/2020/12/01/covid-19-case-confirmed-windsors-northwood-school/
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-case-reported-at-northwood-public-school-in-windsor-1.14072972
https://www.iheartradio.ca/am800/news/covid-19-case-reported-at-northwood-public-school-in-windsor-1.14072972


 

Top pages:  

1) Home Page – 29,416 

2) COVID Assessment Centre – 19,454  

3) Emergency Wait times –8,343 

4) Coronavirus – 7, 464 

5) Careers – 5,920 

6) Contact Us – 3,388 

7) Pharmacy login– 2,389 

8) Pharmacy dept – 2,445 

9) Patient and Visitor Information - 2,256 

 

Top Languages other than English:  

1) Chinese (zh.cn) - 122 

2) French  - 135 

 

YOUTUBE:  

Views: 4,900 views 

Watch Time: 235.4 hours  

 

Top videos internal: 

1) WRH Fit Test Demonstration  – 617 views 

2) Guidelines for Basic Adult Neurological Observation – 587 views 

3) Demonstrating Compassion – 207 

Top videos external:  

4) New Technology called Microwave Ablation – 436  

5) NICU Babies dressed for Halloween - 366 

6) World Stroke Day Dance Video – 324 

7) Introducing Coping with Covid – 244 

8) Negative Air Pressure Rooms - 232 

 

 

FACEBOOK: 9,101  followers +756 

87,277 monthly reach – up 20% 

33,693 people “engaged” on our site - commented or liked our posts this month, up 27% 

12,622 videos viewed, down 10% 

 

Top Posts:  

1) Intensive Care Week –19,266 reached, 1,708 reactions 

2) Possible Covid-19 exposure 3North  – 13,034 reached, 2,236 reactions 

3) Coping with COVID – 12,000 reached, 131 reactions 

4) Diabetes Awareness Month – 8,656 reached, 611 reactions 

5) Radiation Technologist Week – 7,144 people reached, 498 reactions 

6) World Prematurity day – 6,516 people reached, 199 reactions 

 

INSTAGRAM – Followers: 2,857 +96 



Top Posts:  

1) NICU Halloween Babies – 658 likes 

2) Intensive Care week  – 198 likes 

3) Radiation Technologists – 130 likes 

4) Ronald McDonald House Donation – 102 likes 

5) Word Prematurity Day  – 97 likes 

 

TWITTER:  

4,113, +57 this month 

Impressions: 69.4K up32% 

Tweets: 54 up 42.1% 

 

Trending topics:                                                                                                  

1) Message from Ontario Health re: COVID screening –3,081  impressions, 205 

engagements 

2) City reaffirms support for new hospital – 2,776 impressions, 68 engagements 

3) Helen Keller quote  – 2,736 impressions, 56 engagements 

4) Nursing students test positive for COVID-19  –2,123 impressions, 430 engagements 

5) Plasma blood trial for COVID-19 –2,114 impressions, 68 engagements 

 

 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
T

A
B

 G
 



 

 
 
November 26, 2020 
 
The Hon. Doug Ford  
Premier of Ontario  
Legislative Building  
Queen's Park  
Toronto ON M7A 1A1  
 
Re: OHA recommendation to initiate independent formal review of Ontario’s public health 
framework  
 
Dear Premier Ford, 
 
On behalf of Ontario’s hospitals, thank you for the commitment and support that you and your 
government continue to provide to Ontario’s hospitals during the COVID-19 pandemic. We are 
grateful for your request to stay in close ongoing communication on significant matters. It is in 
that spirit that we would like to raise with you our recommendation that the Government of 
Ontario initiate an independent review of Ontario’s public health system and its legal 
framework as soon as the pandemic reaches its conclusion.  
 
When the Health Protection and Promotion Act was amended in 2004 following the SARS crisis, 
it received the unanimous support of all parties in the Legislature. The COVID-19 pandemic is 
the first true test of this framework – and it is hard to imagine a more challenging one. In order 
to restore the spirit of common cause that was present when the Act was first created, the OHA 
asks the government to initiate a full and independent review of Ontario’s public health system 
and its legal framework once the immediate crisis has passed, with an eye towards 
strengthening its efficacy into the future.  
 
The Auditor General of Ontario’s special report on COVID-19 preparedness and management is 
one of several contributions to the assessment of Ontario’s response to pandemic. Given the 
number of organizations and individuals consulted by the Auditor General, we believe there is 
merit in closely considering its analysis. Other important independent analyses include 
recommendations recently released by the Patient Ombudsman respecting the long-term care 
sector, and, of course, the ongoing work of the independent Long-Term Care COVID-19 
Commission itself. Given the historic nature of the COVID-19 pandemic, its consequences for 
our society, and your stated concerns about the Auditor General’s recent report, we 
respectfully submit that a purposeful, comprehensive and non-partisan review of our public 
health framework is a necessary and responsible action given the trial by fire it has received. 
 
Premier, as you have emphasized repeatedly, it remains vitally important that all members of 
the Legislature work together to protect Ontarians and support hospitals and the broader 
health system. While vigorous public debate is healthy, we also know that demonstrations of  



 

 
 
unity are essential in order to minimize the damage done by this pandemic and retain the 
confidence and cooperation of Ontarians at this crucial time.  Now that the proposed extension 
of Dr. Williams’ term as Chief Medical Officer of Health for Ontario has been confirmed, we 
encourage all parties to immediately work closely so that the appointment of his successor by 
September 2021 is met with the unanimous support of the Legislature. 
 
In the meantime, it is essential that we all remain focused on what is most important – 
protecting the health and safety of the people of Ontario. We are still in the midst of a crisis, 
with rising rates of infection and hospitals facing serious capacity pressures and doing 
everything they can to avoid disruption to services and the cancellation of surgeries and 
procedures. Although promising vaccines offer a light at the end of the tunnel, their full 
deployment will take time and an enormous collaborative effort. As you know, the fight is far 
from over, so it is more important than ever that we continue to work together – in your words, 
as Team Ontario.  
 
I have also written to the opposition party leaders to advise them of our recommendations and 
ask for their support. We appreciate your leadership and hard work on behalf of the people of 
Ontario, and your openness to our feedback and ideas. Thank you for your consideration, and 
we look forward to your response. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

                                                                                           
 
Anthony Dale 
President and CEO 

 

 
 
 
CC:  The Hon. Christine Elliott, Deputy Premier and Minister of Health  

Ontario Hospital CEOs 
Ontario Hospital Board Chairs 
OHA Board of Directors 
Steven Davidson, Secretary of the Cabinet 
Helen Angus, Deputy Minister, Ministry of Health 
Heather Watt, Chief of Staff to the Deputy Premier and Minister of Health  
Mark Lawson, Deputy Chief of Staff, Policy 
James Wallace, Chief of Staff to the Premier of Ontario 

 



 

T
A

B
 H

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 




	201210 open agenda
	Tab A
	201105 open ADP FINAL
	Tab B
	CEO Report December 2020
	Tab C
	Schulich report Dec 2020
	Tab D
	Financial Presentation for Board of Directors Meeting December 10 2020
	Treasurer's Report - October 2020 (for December 10 2020 Board Meeting)
	Tab E
	FinAudResources_MinutesGEN20201130
	6.1 Monthly Operating Results Report - October 31 2020
	Tab F
	Media Report for dec
	Tab G
	OHA Letter to Premier Ford re Review of Public Health Framework - November 2020
	Tab H
	Council resolution

